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2022 30
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201609
201612

23 103

2021 10 29
85.61
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201609
2021 30

2021 2020
(2b),(4) 102,880,371 8,807,589 118,851,840 10,174,906
184,845 15,825 (566) (48)
1)) 191,583 16,401 19,490 1,669
2,517,043 215,484 2,618,710 224,188
i) 93,865 8,036 229,698 19,664
105,867,707 9,063,334 121,719,172 10,420,378
) 202,214 17,312 146,778 12,566
191,216 16,370 19,444 1,665
2,182,537 186,847 1,825,072 156,244
2,575,967 220,529 1,991,294 170,475
103,291,740 8,842,806 119,727,878 10,249,904

2021 12 22

J.P.
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201609
30
2021 30 2020 30
2,935,831 251,336 267,263 22,880
794,775 68,041 886,686 75,909
3,730,606 319,377 1,153,949 98,790
541,630 46,369 596,175 51,039
359,371 30,766 392,483 33,600
274,488 23,499 296,083 25,348
1,175,489 100,634 1,284,741 109,987
2,555,117 218,744 (130,792) (11,197)
2,555,117 218,744 (130,792) (11,197)
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201609
30

2021
119,727,878 10,249,904
2,555,117 218,744
(18,991, 255) (1,625,841)
103,291,740 8,842,806

2020
123,594,192 10,580,899
(130,792) (11,197)
(3,735,522) (319,798)

119,727,878 10,249,904
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201609
2021 30

2021 30 2020 30

2,555,117 218,744 (130,792) (11,197)

(794,775) (68,041) (886,686) (75,909)

1,760,342 150,703 (1,017,478) (87,106)

15,971,469 1,367,317 3,439,013 294,414

(172,093) (14,733) 16,277 1,393

55,436 4,746 (69,945) (5,988)

101,667 8,704 32,704 2,800

357,465 30,603 388,196 33,233

609,364 52,168 1,117,552 95,674

18,683,650 1,599,507 3,906,319 334,420

(18,819,483) _ (1,611,136) _ (3,751,764) (321,189)

(18,819,483) _ (1,611,136) _ (3,751,764) (321,189)

(135,833) (11,629) 154,555 13,231

229,698 19,664 75,143 6,433

93,865 8,036 229,698 19,664
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2016 TOPIX

2016 JPX 440
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2007 11
FCA
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NON-EEA AIF

30

2018 S&P 500
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201609 2016 30 2016 12
201612 2016 12 30 2016 11
10
201609 201612
100
100 ETF
ETF
201609 201612
2022 30 2022 12 30

NAV
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IFRS
IFRS
2020
IAS IAS
1ASB I1AS I1AS
IFRS
1AS
2020
IFRS 17 2022
IFRS 17 IFRS 17 IFRS 2022
2022
IAS 16 2022
IAS 37 2022
2018 - 2020 IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS 16 IAS 41
2022
I1AS 2023
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IFRS 15

FVTPL
FVOCI

FVOCI

FVTPL
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FVTPL

IFRS
ECL
FVOCI IFRS 15
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12

2021 30 2020 30

FVTPL

J.P. N.A.
FDI

FDI FDI

98 100
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J.P.

FDI
FDI

J.P.

FDI
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201609
201612

201609
201612
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2021 30 2020 30
201609 2021 2020
102,880,371 118,851,840
102,880,371 118,851,840
201612 2021 2020
30,431,970 35,752,186
30,431,970 35,752,186
2021 30 2020 30
201609
2021 2020
102,880,371 99.60 118,851,840 99.27
201612

2021 2020
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30,431,970 99.57 35,752,186 99.25
J.P. N.A.
2020 30
2020 30
2021 2021 2020 2020
30 30 30 30
1,028,962 1,188,518
201609 (1,028,962) (1,188,518)
304,320 357,522
201612 (304, 320) (357,522)
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201609
2021 30

102,880,371 102,880,371

184,845 184,845

191,583 191,583

2,517,043 2,517,043

93,865 93,865

278,710 102,880,371 2,708,626 105,867,707

202,214 202,214

191,216 191,216

2,182,537 2,182,537

2,575,967 2,575,967
2020 30

118,851,840 118,851,840

(566) (566)

19,490 19,490

2,618,710 2,618,710

229,698 229,698

229,132 118,851,840

2,638,200 121,719,172

19,444 19,444
1,971,850 1,971,850
1,991,294 1,991,294
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201612
2021 30

30,431,970 30,431,970

817 817

679,700 679,700

62,951 62,951

63,768 30,431,970 679,700 31,175,438

45,214 45,214

568,210 568,210

613,424 613,424
2020 30

35,752,186 35,752,186

(897) (897)

719,688 719,688

55,533 55,533

54,636 35,752,186 719,688 36,526,510

502,697 502,697

502,697 502,697
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201609
201612
IFRS
IFRS
2021 30 2020 30
201609

201612
2021 30 2020 30 201609

201612
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201609
2021 30
S&P 99.60
2020 30
S&P 99.27
201612
2021 30
S&P 99.57
2020 30
S&P 99.25
2021 30 2020 30 J.P. N.A.
BNP
J.P. N.A. A2 2020 30 A2
BNP

Aa3 2020 30 Aa3
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2021 30 2020 30 J.P. N.A.
12
201609 2021 2020
202,214 146,778
191,216 19,444
2,182,537 1,825,072

2,575,967 1,991,294
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201612 2021 2020

45,214 32,160
568,210 470,537
613,424 502,697
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201609
2021 30
102,880,371 102,880,371
102,880,371 102,880,371
2020 30
118,851,840 118,851,840

118,851,840 118,851,840
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201612
2021 30
30,431,970 30,431,970
30,431,970 30,431,970
2020 30
35,752,186 35,752,186
35,752,186 35,752,186

2021 30 2020 30
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2021 30 2020 30
201609
2021 30
184,845 184,845
191,583 191,583
2,517,043 2,517,043
93,865 93,865
93,865 2,803,471 2,987,336
191,216 191,216
2,384,751 2,384,751
2,575,967 2,575,967
2020 30
(566) (566)
19,490 19,490
2,618,710 2,618,710
229,698 229,698
229,608 2,637,634 2,867,332
19,444 19,444
1,971,850 1,971,850

1,991,294 1,991,294
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201612
30

Ooooooooooooooooooad

817
679,700
62,951

817
679,700
62,951

62,951 680,517

743,468

613,424

613,424

613,424

613,424

30

(897)
719,688
55,533

(897)
719,688
55,533

55,533 718,791

774,324

502,697

502,697

502,697

502,697
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0TC
0TC

oTC
01C

2021 30 2020 30
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oTC
oTC
ISDA
2021 30 2020 30
201609 2021 30 2020 30
1,159,500 204,736
1,776,331 62,527
2,935,831 267,263
201612 2021 30 2020 30
1,053,913 193,150
938,063 (235,319)

1,991,976 (42,169)
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IAS 32
IAS 32

IAS 32

36
IFRS

2021 30 201609 Aries
Finance Ltd 0% due 26 September 2022 15,000
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201612

30

2020
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201609 2021 2020
103,291,740 119,727,878
103,291,740 119,727,878

201612 2021 2020
30,562,014 36,023,813
30,562,014 36,023,813

30
201609

201609 2021 2020
1,158,400 1,194,130
(181,100) (35,730)
977,300 1,158,400
103,291,740 119,727,878
105.69 103.36

201612 2021 2020
324,430 337,630
(63,860) (13,200)
260,570 324,430
30,562,014 36,023,813
117.29 111.04

133/306



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

0.51 201609 0.43
201612
201609 201612
2021 30 2020 30
201609 2021 30 2020 30
541,630 596,175
202,214 146,778
201612 2021 30 2020 30
126,254 141,688

45,214 32,160
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2016

BNP

26

201612

201612

201612
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2,500
201609
30 2020 30
BNP
201609
30 2020 30
BNP
201609
30 2020 30
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BNP
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J.P.

J.P.

2021 12 22
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 June 2021
China 2x Bull Fund China 2x Bear Fund
Nates 2021 2020 2021 2020
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000
Aszets
Current assets
Financial assets at fairvalue through profit orloss [2b)i4) 331,145 177,143 58,021 105,236
Interest receivable 13 32 18 17
Amaunt dus from brakars (21) - - 1 283
Cue from untholders 345 ad1 299 -
Management fee rebalerscavabla [ay 3.183 B33 3,147 36T
Ctherreceivables and prepaymeant B2 118 1,454 1.343
Cash and cash equivaknts {2i) 29,298 30,8947 34,853 BT 455
Total assets Aga Ui 204,974 ErREE 174,/01
Liabilities
Current liabilitie s
Firancial iabilities at Fair value through proft or loss [2B)i4) 3463 11,112 257 -
Adminsirabon fea payvable {11} 1.255 1,083 1,235 1.063
Audit tes pavable 114 1,287 a2 T24
D b untholders a7 - - 14,032
Otherpavables 316 561 561 976
Total liabilities B 14 063 FREE] 16,815
Equity (&) 259673 195,851 95 658 157 566

The accompanying notes forman integral part of these financial statements
14
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PassIM Trust
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 June 2021
Gaold 2x Bull Fund Gold 2x Bear Fund
Nates 2021 2020 2021 2020
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000
Aszets
Current assets
Financial assets at fairvalue through profit orloss [2b)i4) 807432 2491 858 11477 31,328
Interest receivable 247 48 3 5
Amaunt dus from brakars (21) - 1,435 - 408
Cue from untholders 493 9,804 - 4,728
Management fee rebalerscavabla [ay T8 - 2,236 484
Ctherreceivables and prepaymeant 1113 1,017 1,307 1,194
Cash and cash equvaknis {2i) 329457 203,940 2,358 12,918
Total assets 1,141,310 a0E, 102 17,381 a1,0063
Liabilities
Current liabilitie s
Firancial iabilities at Fair value through proft or loss [2B)i4) 158,703 E . 4 345
Adminsirabon fea payvable {11} 1,255 1,082 1,235 1.082
Audit tes pavable 1] 517 15 40
Management fee pavabia [} - 779 . -
Anvount due bo brokers i2n - 735 143
Do b nho e s = 19.063 . -
Ctherpayables 632 24T 505 SEG
Total liabilities 162,150 PR E] 1,924 6,05
Equity (&) S7E 360 435,059 15 457 45,010

The accompanying notes forman integral part of these financial statements
15
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 June 2021
India 2% Bull Fund India2x Bear Fund
Nates 2021 2020 2021 2020
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000
Aszets
Current assets
Financial assets at fairvalue through profit orloss [2b)i4) 198, 238 281,427 3,014 26922
Interest receivable B3 T0 1 5
Amount dus from brakars (21) - 73 1,001 119
Cue from untholders - 18,816 3 3.322
Management fee rebate recaivabla [ay 3257 iy | 1,383 918
Ctherreceivables and prepayrmeant a7 GES 1,240 11717
Cash and cash equvaknis {2i) B5,531 112,802 307 9,987
Total assets 287 465 413,584 192 &2 400
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Firancial habilities al Fair value through proft orloss [2B)i4) Z1.514 - . 1,356
Adminsirabon fea payvable {11} 1,255 1,083 1,235 1.063
Audit tes pavable 150 2408 3 238
Arvount due bo brokers {21 - 676 - -
Due to unitholders 170 4 120 1,242 .
Ctharpavables 731 1,179 S06 [Lfh ]
Total liabilities 4 BI5 g 556 3008 3378
Equity (&) 283 641 404 328 4 521 39,072

The accompanying notes forman integral part of these financial statements
16
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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As at 30 June 2021
AUD Target Maturity Bond AUD Target Maturity Bond
Fund 201609 Fund 201612
Maotes piiral 2020 2021 2020
ALD ALD AUD ALUD
Azsets
Current agsats
Financial assels at fairvalue through profit or loss [2bpie) 102880371 118,831,840 30,431,870 35,752,188
Intemest rmcenable 164 845 [366) 817 {3aT)
Amount due from brokers {21 191,583 19,480 - -
COtherreceivables and prepayment 2517043 2618710 G749 700 719 688
Cash and cash egquivakents () 93 BES 239 698 62 951 55 533
Total agsets 105 867 707 121,719,173 31175438 36,526 510
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Managemant fae payakie (2 202214 146,778 45,214 32,160
Cuvir to undholders 191,216 19,444 . -
Otherpayables 2182537 1825072 SEE.210 470537
Tatal liabilities 2575967 1,031 204 G153 434 S0 687
Equity (&) 103,281 740 119727 878 30 562 014 36 023 813

The accompanying notes forman integral part of these financial statements

17
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PassIM Trust
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 30 June 2021

S Technelogy 2x Bull Fund US Technology 2x BearFund

Naotes 2021 2020 2021 2020
JPY 000 JPY 00D JPY D00 JPY000

Aszets
Current assets
Financial assets at fairvalue through profit orloss [2b)i4) 1514 472 56,341 322,319 130,620
Interest receivable 2848 105 a3 19
Amount dus from brakars (21) 3835 6,577 1,313 32,027
Cue from untholders 163,049 314 320 ag 6,563
Management fee rebalerscavabla (9 1,323 Ba5 2320 Tan
Ctherreceivables and prepaymeant 541 - 535 -
Cashand cash equabkents {24) 115,884 224 821 220,318 102 175
Total agsets 17849, 104 1100 5449 ; :
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financoal habilitkes at fair value through profit orkoss [2Ehid ) - E 71454 £,359
Adminsirabion fea payabke {1 611 470 611 470
Audit tee pavable 3,197 1689 a1 &7
Anvount due bo brokers {21 17,897 170,371 . 1,618
Due bo wnitholders 33596 - 4493 123,722
Trustas fae pavabhe (R} = 127 - 127
Otherpayables 17 448 4 674 4,524 1,018
Tatal liabilities [ENEE] 105,851 e, 130,301
Equity (&) 1,726,055 926,818 468,953 137,823

The financial statemants were approved and authonsed for issue by Trustes and the Drectors of the Manageron 22 December 2021

ﬁ fgrf xfil.._n,?-,.',}{l-/f

|ntarl:n..lstCcrlpuralels'ennc-?stl:aman]lened as Truslea JP.Morgan Mansart Management Limied a5 Manager

The accompanying notes forman integral part of these financial statements
18

143/306



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year ended 30 June 2021

Chima 2x Bull Fund
Yearended30 Yearended30

China 2x Bear Fund
Yearended30 Yearended 30

Motes June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020
JPY000 JPYD00 JPY000 JPY'000

Income
Net gainflloss Jon financial assets and liabilfies at farvalue

through profit orioss T 24 815 (117 85T) {25,960) TEASE
Intearest ncome induding amofisaton [255] {776} [25]) {535]
Tatal netincomel(loss) 24 560 (118 633) {35 085) 75821
Expenses
Administration fea 11 b ] 2.251 2.129 2.249
Audit fee 247 474 BE 351
Cuslody fea 12 245 {155) 222 (548}
Managamant fee rabate a {3.360) [2,653) [3.522) [2.413)
Transachon costs - 61 - 1,104
Trustee lee 10 305 310 305 310
Lirgal and probessona fag 528 718 523 668
Othar éxpanses BTE 1,229 SE0 1,020
Total eperating expenses Hia 2,425 2B 2741
Profitiloss)before tax 23,585 (120.888) {26,270} T3.080
Withhobding tax {10} [3E) 4) (23)
Met profitiless) atributabile to participating units 23,573 (130, 926) (36,374 72,058

The accompanying notes forman integral part of these financial statements
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Income

Nat (loss ¥gain on financial assels and abilties at fairvalue
throwugh profit orioss

Interest ncome incuding amomisation

Total net (losslincome

Expenses

Adminsstration fes

Audit fee

Cuslody fea

Management feg rabate
Transachion costs

Trustes fes

Legal and professonal fee
Otherexpanses

Total cperating expenses

{Lo=sVprofit before tax
withhiokding tax

Met (loss Vprofit attributable to participating units

Gold 2x Bull Fund Gold 2x Bear Fund
Yearended30 Yearended30 Yearended30 Yearended 30
Motes Jung 2021 SJune 2020 Jure 2021 June 2020
JPY00D JPYT00D JEY'000 JEYO00
T (143.73%) 104 577 10,866 {36677
2 (322} (39} (48]
43.714) T 155 10827 267 25
1 2,130 2,232 2,130 2,239
1,010 307 2a a7
12 263 14E) 217 (1E0)
9 {2.218) (2,853) [3.448) i3.187)
- a0g - 330
10 a0s 310 305 310
53T 651 820 547
2076 877 378 431
4 203 2 JB4 130 51T
(147 915) 101,971 10,647 (27,262)
{52 (12} 1) {3}
(147 97 7) 101,953 10638 (27 . 265)

The accompanying notes forman integral part of these financial statements
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year ended 30 June 2021

India 2x Bull Fund India 2x Bear Fund
Yearended 30 Yearended30 Yearended 30 Year ended 30
MNotes June 2021 June 2020 Jure 2021 June 2020
JPYO00 JPYT00 JEYO00 JEYO00

Income
Naet gani[loss Jom financial assels and labilties at fairvalue

through profit erioss T 164 742 (265 640) 25983} TigTs
Interest income induding amatisation [366) {1,359} [45] (203}
Total netincomel(loss) 184 276 G EED 126, 02T} EREIY
Expenses
Adminsstration fes 1 2124 2,140 2.129 2255
Audit fee 310 49032 7 106
Custody e 12 255 (a1} 216 {1TE)
Management feg rabate q {3,334 (2,065} [3.524) [3,144)
Transachon costs - 423 - 415
Trustes fee 10 s 310 305 310
Legal and professonal fee 533 489 s 70
Otheraxpanses Qg3 1,830 436 538
Total cperating expenses 1 201 4 388 100 034
Profitiloss)before tax 183175 [271,387) (36, 127) T2.736
withhiokding tax 18] (B3} - {5}
MNet profitifloss) attibutable to participating wnits 183,157 [271 4500 (26,127} T4.731

The accompanying notes forman integral part of these financial statements
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year ended 30 June 2021

AUD Target Maturity Bond AUD Target Maturity Band
Fumd 201609 Fund 201612
Yearended30 Yearended3D Yearended 30 Yearended 30
Motes June 2021 Jdune 2020 June 2021 June 2020
ALD AUD ALID ALID
Income
Mat ganifloss jon financal assels and habilities at fairvalue
through profit orioss 283583 67 263 1,891,976 (42.163)
Intenest ncome iInduding amotisation 794 775 E86 BEG 196 081 223603
Total netincome 3 730 606 1,153 949 2158057 151424
Expenses
Management teg 541,630 BOE.1TS 126254 141,688
Pralimenary axpensss 358.3M 192 483 100,063 110,762
Transadion costs - - 26 -
Otherexpenses 274 488 296,083 77.071 84,063
Total eperating expenzes 1175484 1,284,741 03414 336513
Profitilloss)before tax 2555117 [130,79Z) 1.654 543 (155.079)
Withhobdng tax . . .
Met profitifloss) attributable to participating units 2555117 (130,792} 1854 643 [155.073)

The accompanying notes forman integral part of these financial statements
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year ended 30 June 2021

S Technology 2x Bull Fumd
For the period

US Technology 2x Bear Fund
For the period

10 March 2020 10 March 2020
[date of {date of
incorporation) incorparation)
Yearended3d to 30 June Yearended30 to 30June
Motes  June 2021 2020 June 2021 2020
JPY000 JFY000 JPY000 JPYO00
Incame
Met gamniixss jon financal assets and liabilties at fairvalue
threugh profit orioss T 1,536 661 245 544 [490.773) 151.238)

Interest ncome induding amodisation 1. 188 55 453 23
Total netincomei{loss) 1,537,943 245 603 {490,3.20) 121,215}
Expenses
Adminstrabion fee 1" 2488 470 2488 4710
Audit fee 3,122 189 Ao 57
Custody fes 12 1,525 B3 1.783 71
Managemeant fee rabate a {2.483) (BES) [4,733) (TR0}
Pralsrenary axpénsss - 1,640 - 541
Transadion costs 12,8349 779 1,665 234
Trustee fes 10 B34 127 gaa 127
Legal and professional fee 12 & 12 4
Otherexpanses 2834 311 1.204 217
Total operating expenses 21,150 4 415 LT EEX]
Profitifloss)befors tax 1,516,673 240 591 (496 4T8) (52,145
wWithhiobding tax [136) {11} (53} {5]
Met profitifloss) attributable to participating units 1 516,537 240 681 (456 541) {52 151)

The accompanying notes forman integral part of these financial statements
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the financial year ended 30 June 2021

China 2x Bull Fund China 2x Bear Fund
Yearended30 Yearended 30 Yearended30 Yearended30
June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000
Cash flows from ﬂl‘.lll‘lﬂl‘lg activities
Profitfkoess) bedore fax 23.585 [120.888) {26,270, 73,080
Adjustments for:
- Interast incoms induding amortisaton 255 TTE 25 G35
Operating cashflow before working capital changes 235840 (120,112} (26,245 13,715
- {Increase ydacrease in financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss {54.,002) 221,285 47 215 47,916
- (Decreass Vincrease in financal kabities at fairvalue through proft or
oss (T.649) 11,112 257 (32,938)
- Decrease in dus from brokers - - 282 365
- Increaseddecraaselin adminstration fee pavatis 172 {1,684} 172 11.684)
- (Decreasa incroase in audit fee payabla [1,173) 474 (683, 351
- (Increase Ydecrease in management fee rebaterecanable [2.550) a05 [2.780; 1,351
- Decraase in dus to brokers - (4 356) - -
- Decrease in trustes fee payable - {363) - (363
= Incraase in oltharracevables (106) (T18} {111, (1.343)
- Decraase in olharpayables (285]) {487} [345; {377}
- Intomea recened ndudng amorbisation (206) (708} (26 (6048
- Withholding tax paid (10} [28) (4 {22}
Met cagh (used inlifrom operating activities 42039 104 812 17683 136,362
Cash flows from financing activities
Procesads from subscaptions of units 596,085 1528814 124 202 1,052,000
Payments en redemplion of units (555 6O5Y (1, 727 693} {174 487 (1,275 194}
Met cash fromi{usedin) financing activities 40320 (195,879} (50,285, (223.994)
Met decrease incash and cash équivalents [1.643) (94 06T ) (32,602, (86.832)
Cash and cash aquivakent al bagirmingal the year 30847 125014 67455 154 287
Cash and cash equivalentatend of the year 29 248 30,947 34 853 BT 455

The accompanying notes forman integral part of these financial statements
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended 30 June 2021

Gold 2x Bull Fund
Yearended30 Yearended 30

Gold 2x Bear Fund
Yearended30 Yearended30

June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY D00 JPY D00

Cash flows from ﬂl‘.lll‘lﬂl‘lg activities
[Lossyproft befors tax (147,815) 101,871 10697 (27, 262)
Adjustments for:
- Interast incoms induding amortisaton [21) 323 34 48
Operating cashflow before working capital changes (14T 936) 102293 10,736 (27,214}
- {Increase ydacrease in financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss (515,564} (198, 290) 19849 (24 820}
- Increasefdecraasalin inancial kabiktias at farvalue through profit or

loss 154,703 - (4,345} 3
- Decreaseiincraass jin due from brokers 1435 [1.435) 408 {381)
- Increaseddacraass)in adminstration fee payatis 173 {1,685} 173 {1,685)
- Increasef[decraaselin audi fee payable 43 307 (25 ]
- {Decreass ¥increass in management feepayable (779} 774 - -
- {Increase Ydecrease in managemant fee rabaterecanabls [2,778) 1,780 [1.752: 1,331
- (Decrease ¥increass in due to brokers (T55] [4,002) 1449 -
- Decraase in trusles fae payabla - (363} - {363])
- Incraase in otharracevables (98] {1,017} {113, {78)
- (Decrease fincreasa in other payables (215} {145} (&1 7
- Income receved ncuding amortsation {178} (340} (37 (52)
- Withholding tax paid (B2} [12) 1 (3}
Met cash (used infrom operating activities [ ] [Tond W50 28001 [0, 045y
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from subscngtions of units 2094 275 1,581,328 165415 206,105
Payments on redemplion of units {1,461 753) (1.286,625) (200,936, (147 4349)
Met cash fromijusedin) inancing activities B32.5926 294 703 (33,521 28,606
Met increasefidecreass)in cashand cash squivalents 125,517 192,553 (10,560 8618
Cash and cash equivabent at beginningof the wear 203940 11.387 12818 4,300
Cash and cash eguivalent atend of the year 329 457 203 940 FREL] 12918

The accompanying notes forman integral part of these financial statements

28

153/306



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended 30 June 2021

India2x Bull Fund India Zx Bear Fund
Yearended30 Year ended30 Yearended30 Yearended30
June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY D00 JPY D00
Cash flows from op-nﬂng activities
Profitfkoess) bedore fax 183,175 (271, 387) {26,127, 72736
Adjustments for:
- Interast incoms induding amortisaton 66 1,354 45 208
Operating cashflow before working capital changes 182 541 [270,028) (26,082 72544
- Decraase in finanaal assals at fairvalue through profit or loss 82 899 3162 867 23 8908 106,051
- Increasef{decreaselin financial kabiities at farvalue through profit or
loss 2519 {32 610} [1.356; 1,356
- Decrease/increasea jin dua from brokers 13 405 (882, (114
- Increase(decraasalin administration fee payatie 172 [1.664) 17 (1.684)
- (Decrease increass in audt fes payable [2.24%) 902 (235, 108
- (Increase Ydecrease in managament foe rabaterecovable [3.026) 1.028 AES: 250
- (Decreass ¥increase in due to brokers (BTE) BTH - -
- Decraase in trustes fee payable - {322) - 1313}
- Decreasedincrease jin othermoemvables 278 {GES) {113, {(1.477)
- Decraass in ofher payables [443) (GEG) (185, [128)
- Income receved nchudng amorisation {359) (1.305) (41 {173}
- Withholding tax pad [18]) [E3} - [5)
Met cash fromf{uzed In) operating activities 26 G607 aB.515 [5.2094; 177,110
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceads from subscrgbions ofunits 106,551 1,804 569 13557 517,218
Payments on redemplion ofunits (296 529) {2.240,888) (17 448} (T8E,214)
Met cash used infinancing activities (289,897T8) [336.317) [3.891; {209,001}
Met decrease incash and cash equivalents {27,371} [277 802} (8,180, {31,291}
Cash and cash equivabent al Deginningof the year 112902 390,704 2,987 41,278
Cash and cash equivalentatend of the year B5.531 112,902 BO7 g 887

The accompanying notes forman integral part of these financial statements
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended 30 June 2021
ALD Target Maturity Bond ALID Target Maturity Bond
Fund 201809 Fund 201612
Yearended 30 Yearended 30 Yearended 30 Yearended 30
June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020
ALD ALD ALID AUD

Cash flows from operatingactivities

Profitfloss) belone tax 2555117 [130,792) 1.884 642 (155,0749)
Adjustments for:

= Irehee i St incons nchuding amorisation [T94,775) (B85 GRS} (196 0817; (223 603}
Operating cash flaw before working capital changes 1,760 343 {1,097 478} 1688 562 (378,684}
- Decraase in financal assels at farvalue through profit orkoss 15971469 3430013 5320, 1€ 1.528.9149
- {Increasa Ydecrease in due from brokers {172.083) 16,277 - -
- Increase/{decreasa)inmanagement fee payabie 65436 (69,945) 13054 (T.876)
- Decrease in otherrecavables 101,667 32,704 399688 12,736
- Ingraass in other pavables 5T 465 188106 a7 673 110,224
- Incomea recened ncudng amorbisation B0G 364 1,117,552 194 367 282 736
Met cash from cperating activities 18 655 650 3906214 1,353,860 1.548,057
Cash flows from financing activities

Payments on rademplion of units (13819483  (3.751.764) [T.346 442 (14938 316)
Met cash used infinancingactivities (12,819 .483) (3,751,764} (7,546,442, (14598 216)
Met (decrease)increasein cashand cash eguivalents [135.833) 154 555 Ta18 49 741
iZash and cash equivalent at beginning of the year 234 698 75143 55533 5782
Cash and cash equivalentatend of the year Q3 865 228 698 62351 35,933

The accompanying notes forman integral part of these financial statements
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended 30 June 2021

US Technalogy 2x Bull Fund US Technolegy 2x Bear Fund
Forthe period For the period
10 March 2020 10 March 2020
{date of {date of
incorperation) incorperation)
Yearended30D  to 30 June Yearended30d to 30 June
June 2021 2020 June 2021 2020
JPY 000 JPYTO00 JPY 000 JPY D00

Cash fNows from operatingactivities
Profitfioss ) belone lax 1516673 240691 (496 478, (52,148}
Adjustments for:
= Interast incoms including amorbisabon [1,188) [B5} {453 {23}
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 1,515 485 240 628 (496 931! (52,168)
- Increase in financial assals at fairvalue through profit orloss (957 .821) [556,341) (191 6949! (130,620)
- Increass in financial kabilties at fairvalus throwgh proft orloss - - 63125 8,359
- Decraasefncreasea }in dua from brokers 2. 741 [6.5T7) I0nT14 (32,027T)
- Increase in admenisiration fee payabls 141 470 141 470
- Increase in audt fes payabla 3.008 189 B34 &7
- Increass in management fes rebate reoavable (635) {665 [1.530; -
= (Decreass fincreasa in dus to brokers (152.474) 170,371 [1.618,; 1.618
- (Decreasa Mincraasé in trustas fee payable {127} 127 (127, 127
- Increase in otherrecevables (541) - (535, {Ta0)
- Increass in otherpayables 12,774 4 674 1506 1,018
- Income received nduding amortisation 1,004 (4 418 4
= Withholding tax paid {136] (10} = (63 (5}
Met cash fromf{usedin) operating activities 423 406 (147,196} (593,764 (203 858)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceads from subscipbions of units 7,781,952 1,305.590 1.957 517 G539, 104
Payments on redemplion ofunits {3314 085) (933 773} 1246812 381,971}
Met cash (used in)from financing activities (232.133) EYREIE 710,903 307133
Met (decreaseincreasein cash and cazh equivalents (108,727} F34 621 117 1414 103,175
Cash and cash equivalent at baginningol the yeanpenod 224 631 . 103 175 -
Cash and cash equivalentat end of the yeariperiod 115 894 224 621 220316 105 175

The accompanying notes forman integral part of these financial statements
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. General Information

Passikd Trust (“the Trust™) is & unitirest established a3 an umbrella fund underthe laws of the Cayman 1slands pursuant
to the Trust Deed daled 2 December 2014, as amended by Supplemental Deeds (collectivelyreferred 1o as the "Deeds”).

The Trusi has been established as an umbrellafund and accordinglythe assels of the Trustwillbe separated inlo different
sub-funds. As al 30 June 2021, the Trusl has 14 sub-fundsunderils umbrella, out ofwhich 10 sub-funds. China 2x Bull
Fund,China 2x Bear Fund,.Gold 2x Bull Fund, Gold 2x Bear Fund, India2x Bull Fund ,India 2x Bear Fund.AUD Targe
Maturity Bond Fund 201609, AUD Target Maturty Bond Fund 201612, US Technology 2< Bull Fund and US Technology
2x Bear Fund are presented in this report. Currenfly each sub-fund issues onlyoneclass ofshare.

ForSeries 2016 TOPIX Fund, Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund, Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund and Series 2016 JPX = Mikke
400 Fund, the fund administralor Is State Streel Fund Services (Ireland) Limiled and fund cuslodian Iz Slate Stresl
Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited . For Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund . lthe fund adminisirator is Slate Sireetl Cayman Trust
Company, Lid and fund cuslodian is Slale Sireel Bank and Trusl Company. A separale Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statemenis have been prepared forthese4 sub-funds,

The Manager is J.P. Morgan Mansart Managemeni Limited (the "Manager®). a member ofthe J.P. Morgan Group. The
Manager was incerporated as a limited liabllity company under the laws of England and Wales on 7 Movember 2007,
The Manager is aulhorised by the Financial Conduct Autharity ("FCA™) in the UK pursuant to the AIFMD Regulalions.
The principal activity of ihe Manager is to manage colleclive invesiment schemes and special purpese vehicles. The
Manageris an azsel management company regulaled by the FCA and based within the Investment Bank of J_P. Morgan
Chase. The Managers focus is to deliver, amongsi olher initiatives, innovative Asset Management products b
institutlonalclienisand intermed laries globally (excluding the USA) on a cuslomised basis.

The Trustee ofthe Trust isIntertrust Corporate Services (Cayman) Limited (Ihe "Trustea”).

Forthe purposes of AIFMD, the Trust will constitute a Mo n-Eurepean Economic Area ("NOMN-EEA™) AIF with a European
Ecomomic Area ("EEA”) AIFM. The distribulionofthis trust is resiricled to Japaneseinvestors anly.

More ihan one class of units may be Issued in respect of each sub-fund and the Manager may. in ils absolute discretion.
differentiate between the rights attachinglo the different classes withina p arlicular sub-fund Including, without limitaton,
the dividend policy, the currency in which the class is denominaled, the level of management fees, fhe subscription
charge andfor the redemplion charge payable in respecl of each class. In addition, a sub-fund may use Financal
Derivalive Instruments on behalf of specific classes in accord ancewith the provisions ofthe Trust Deed. Subject to the
faregoing, a separale poolofassels will nol be maintained for each class.

The Manager may also classify unils in series wilhin each class for the purposes of calculating fees. Any oulslanding
series of units may. in ihe discrelionofihe Manager be redesignated and converied {afler the payment or accrual of all
applicable fees and expenses) into units of anolher series atthe prevailing nel asset value perunit of such other series.

The assels of each sub-fund will be invested in accordance with theinvestmen! objectives and policies ofthat sub-fund
as set out In this Prospecius or, asthe case may be, the relevant Supplement Deed.

Date of launch Date of constitution

China 2x Bull Fund

China 2x Bear Fund

Geld 2x Bull Fund

Gold 2x Bear Fund

India2x Bull Fund

India2x Bear Fund

ALID Targel Maturity Bond Fund 201609
AUD Targel Malurlty Bond Fund 201612
Us Technology 2x Bull Fund

US Technology 2x Bear Fund

11 December 2014
11 Decembear 2014
11 December 2014
11 December 2014
11 December 2014
11 December 2014

30 Septlember 2016

30 December 2016
10 March 2020
10 March 2020

8 December 2014
& December 2014
8 December 2014
8 December 2014
& December 2014
8 December 2014

12 August 2016
9 Movember 2016
20 February 2020
20 February 2020
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
1. General Information (continued)

The Investment objectives for each ofthe 10 sub-fund are listed below:

The China 2x Bull Fund seeks lo provide, before any fees and expenses, a two-limes (2x) leveraged exposure lo he
perfarmance, whether positive ar negalive_ ofthe Hang Seng China Enlerprizes Index (the “HSCE™), hedged In Japanese
Yen, in the medium-term.

The China 2x Bear Fund seeks 1o provide, before any fees and expenses, a two-times (2x) leveraged exposure fo the
inverse (or opposite) peformance, whelher positive or negative, offhe Hang Seng China Enferprises Index {the "HSCEI),
hedged in Japanese Yen.in lhe medium-lerm.

The Gold 2x Bull Fund seeks lo provide, before any fees and expenses, a two-times (2x) leveraged exposure to the
perfermance, whelher posilive er negative. of the SPDR Gold Trust exchange iraded fund (the “ETF"), hedged In
Japanese Yen, in lhe medium-term.

The Gold 2x Bear Fund seeks 1o provide, before any fees and expenses, a iwo-limes (2x) leveraged exposure o he
inverse {or opposile) performance. whether posilive or negative. of the SPDR Gold Trust exchange traded fund {the
‘ETF™), hedged in Japanese Yen, in the medium-term,

The India 2x Bull Fund seeks lo provide, before any fees and expenses, a two-limes (2x) leveraged exposure to the
perfermance, whether posiiive or negative. of the CHX Nifty Index (lhe "CNX Nifty™). h edged In Japanese Yen, In the
medium-lerm,

The India 2x Bear Fund seeks lo provide, before any fees and expenses, a two-limes (2x) leveraged exposure (o the
inverse (or opposite) performance. whether positive or negative. of the CNX Nifty Index (the "CHNX Nifty™). hedged in
Japanese Yen, in the medium-tarm.

The ALID Target Malurity Bond Fund 201609 and the AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612 both sub-funds seek o
achieve medium fo leng lerm capital appreciation while aiming to protect 100% of the inilial issue price per unit al the
maturity date. Bolh ihe sub-funds will investin AUD denominated linked notes issued by a special purpose company and
through exposure to the performance ofthe ETF Efficiente iIndex hedged in AUD consisting of several exchange iraded
fund ("ETF"s). while aiming to prolect 100% ofthe issue price per unitin ALID al the maturity.

The ALID Targe! Maturity Bond Fund 201609 and the AUD Target Malurity Bond Fund 201612 will both malure on 30
Saplember 2022 and 30 Dacember 2022 respeclively.

The US Technology 2x Bull Fund seeks lo provide, before any fees and expenses, a two -limes (2x) leverag ed exposure
to the performan ce, whether posiive or negative, ofthe NASDAQ 100 Stock Index (1he "MASDAQ™, in the medium term,

TheUS Technology 2x Bear Fund seeks to provide, before any fees and expenses. a two-limes (2x) leveraged exposure
to the performance, whether positive or negalive, of the NASDADS 100 Stock Index (lhe "MASDAG"), in the medium term.

2, Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting polcles appledin the preparation ofihese finandal stalements are set oul below. These polices
have been consistently appled to the period presented , unless otherwise stated.

Al references to net asset value ("NAVT) throughout these financial statements refer to net assets aftributable o
unitholders (after amodisation of preliminary expenses adjustment) unless otherwise stated.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

fa) Basis of preparation

The financial stalements of the sub-funds have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Rep oring
Standards (IFRS"). The financial statemenis are prepared using the fair valuation af financial assels and financial
liabilities (inchuding derivative instruments) held al fair value through profit arloss.

The preparation offinancial statements in conformily with IFRS requires the use of cerlain critical accounting eslimates,
It also requires the directors to exercisaits judgement in the processofapplying the sub-fund's accounting p alicies. The

principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial stalements are sef oul below.

New Standards adopted as at 1 July 2020

Definllion ofMaterial (Amendments o [AS 1 and IAS 8

The |ASE has made amendments fo |1AS 1 Presenfation af Financial Statements and |1AS 8 Accounting Polkies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors which use a consisten! definition of materiality throughout Internatio nal Financial
Reporting Slandards and the Conceplual Framework for Financial Repoding, clarify when infermalion is material and
incerporate some ofthe guidance in lAS 1 aboul Immaterial Infermation.

The Manager s assessing theimp act ofthis slandard and itis nol expected lo have a significantimpact onihe sub -funds’
financial position, peformance or disclosures in its financlal statemenis.

A number of new standards, amendmenlts to standards and interprelations are effective for annual periods beginning
after 1 July 2020, and have notbeen applied inpreparingthese financial stalemenis. Mone ofthese are expecied to have
a significant effect on the financial slatements ofthe sub-funds.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts effective 1 January 2022

Amendmenisto IFRS 17 Insuwrance Coniracis (Amendments o IFRS 17 and IFRS 4) effeclive 1 January 2022
References to the Conceplual Framework effective 1 January 2022

Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to |1AS 16) effective 1 January 2022

Onerous Contracts —Costof Fulfilling a Contract (Amendmenis lo IAS 37) effective 1 January 2022

Annual Improvemenis fo IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle (Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16, IAS 41)
effective 1 January 2022

s  Classification of Liabilities as Currentar Non-current{Amendments (o 1AS 1) efMective 1 January 2023
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(b} Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Classification and initial measurement of financial assets

Exceplforthoselrade receivablesthat do nelconlain a significantfinancing component and are measured al the
transactlion prica in accerdance with IFRS 15, all financial assels are inifially measured al fair value adjusted for
transaction cosls.

Financial assels, otherthan those designaled and effective as hedginginstrumenis, are classified into the fallowing
categories:

. amorized cosl;
] fair value ihrough profit orloss{FVTPL);
. fair value ihrough other comprehensive income (FWOCI)

In the periods presented, ihe sub-funds do nothave any financial assels categorised as FVOCI.

The classificalion is determined by bolh:

. the business model for managing the financial assel
. Ihe coniractual cazh flow characleristics ofihe financial azsel.

All income and expenses relating to financlal assels are recognised in stalement of comprehensive income as
income or expenses, exceptforimpaiment ofirade receivables which is presented within other expenses.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assels are measured at amorised costifihe assels meet the following conditions {and are nof designated
as FVTPL):

- ihey are hield within abusiness model whose objectivels to hold the financial assels and collect its contrachusl
cash flows; and

- ihe contractual termis of the financial assels give rise to cash flows that are solely paymenis of principa and
interest an the principalamount cutstanding

After Initial recagnition, Ihese are measured al amortised cosl using the effective interest method. Discounting is
omitled where the effect of discownting is immaterial,

The sub-funds”cash and cash equivalents, interest receivable. amount due from brokers, due from unitholders,
management fee rebate and other receivables fallinte this category.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies [continued)

(b} Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
filiy Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assels thal are held within a different business modelother than ‘hold o collect or held to collectand sel
are categorised alfair value through fair value through proft and loss. The conlractual cash flows ofthe sub -funds”
debt securities are solely principal and inferest, however, these securifies are neither held for the purpose of
collacling contraduwal cash flows nor held both for cellecling contractual cash flews and for sale. The colleclion of
contractual cash flows is onlyincidental to achieving the sub-funds’ business model's objective. Conseguenily, al
Investments are measured al fair value through profit or loss. All derivalive financial Instruments fall inte this
category.

The fair value of financial assets and liabikties raded In active markels |5 based on their quoted markel prices a
the clase of irading anthe reparting date. The quoted markel prices used forfinancial assels held by the sub-funds
are the market closing price at reporling date.

Gains and losses arising from changes in fhe fair value of the “financial assets at fair value through profit orloss”
category are included In the stalement of comprehensive Incomewithin “net gains of financial assets af fair value
through profiorioss”inthe periodin whichthey arise,

{i¥} Impairment of financial assets
IFRS 9's Impairment requirements use more forward looking infommationto recognize expected credil losses —the
‘expecled credil losses (ECL) model’. Instruments wilhin the scope of the new requirements included loans and
olher debt-type financial assets measured al amorised cost and FVOCI, frade recelvables, conlracl assels
recognised and measured under IFRS 15 and loan commiments and some financial guarantes contracts (forthe
iszuer) that are not measured al fair value through profitorloss.
The Manager considers abroader range of informalion when assessing creditrisk and measuring expecled credi

losses, including past events, current condilions. reasonable and supportable forecasis that affect the expected
collectability efthe fulure cash flows of the instrument.

In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinctionis made belween:

- fimancial instrumenis that have nol deteriorated significantly in credil quality since iniial recagnition orthat have
low creditrisk (‘Stage 1) and

- financial instruments that have deteriorated significantly in credif quality since initial recognition andwhose credi
rigk s nollow ("Slage 2.

‘Stage 3" would cover financial assets thathave objective evidence ofimpalrment at the reperling dale.

“12-month expected credit losses’ are recognised for the first calegory while Tifetime expected credit losses” are
recognisedforine second calegory.

Measurement of the expected creditlosses is determined by a probability-weighled estimate of credit losses over
the expected life of the financial instrument.

There are no expected credillosses forthe sub-funds as at 20 June 2021 and 30 Junme 2020,
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(b} Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
[¥) Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
The sub-funds financial liakikties include trade, expenses and other payables and derivalive financial instruments.

Financial llabllties are Initially measwred al fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted for fransaction cosis unless
the sub-funds'designated afinancial liabiity al fair value through profit orless.

Subsequently. financial liablities are measured al amoriised cost using the effective interest method except for
derivalives and financial liabilties designated &l FVTPL, which are carried subsequently al fair value wilh gains or
losses recognisedin slatementofcomprehensive inceme.

[wi) Valuation of investments

The sub-fund s have entered into Financial Darivative Instruments ("FDI") and in particular Swap confractswith J P,
Morgan Chase Bank M.A, under a Master Agreement, On any waluation date, swaps are valued using the
counterparty’s radable market price. and the counterparty s engaged inproviding adaily liquidity in such derlvatve
with limited bid-offer spreads,

The Manager has set up a counter valuation process that is performed by the parifolic managers. The portilio
managers subject each FDI in each sub-fund lo a dally valualion and have processes and conirols in place o
challenge the counterparty’s FDI valualion with the valuation. The sub-funds alse Invest in US Treasury Bills and
Japanese Governmen| Bonds which arevalued on the valuation day al Ihe lastiraded price quoled ona recognised
narket.

The AUD denominated performance linked notes will be issued al a discount (8% to their principal amount (he
“Mote Principal Amount™ and have been designed to redeem at a value af least to 100% of the Note Principal
Amount on maturity date.

The followingreference assels ofthe noles include:

(i} Japanese Government Bonds (“JGBs"):
{iiy an ALIDAIPY currancy swap with J.P. Morgan Securities PLC (lhe "Swap Counterparty®); and
(iiiy anofional leveraged exposure lo the ETF Eficiente index hedged in AUD.

Cn any valuation dale_ the AUD denominaled perfarmancelink noles arevalued U'.ill'lg the counlerparty's Irad able
rnarket price. and the counlerparty is engaged in providing a daily liquidity in such perfeormance link noles wif
limited bid-offer spreads.

Tolerance gaps are defined for each FDI prior to the launch of any sub-fund. These gaps take into account the
characteristics of the FDI being employed by the sub-funds in meeting its Investment objectives and define the
valuation variance above whichvaluations may be recalculaled or dispuled and escalated furlher shouldihe dispue
remain unresolved.

Any valuation differences that exceed that predefined maximum lolerance gap are escalated to the Internal Risk
Management and Confrel Funclionofthe Manager, which reviews causes forthe discrepancy.

In the evenl that the Internal Risk Management and Conirol funclion of the Manager are unable to resolve the
difference. they will escalate that difference to the Manager's Valuation Committee together with delall of the
investigations performed, The Valualion Committee comprises the CEQ of the Manager. the Head of Risk
Managemen! and Conirel and a represeniative from J.P. Mergan's Corperate Valualion Conlrel Group o provide
exper valualion advice.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(b} Financial aszets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss [continued)
(vi) Valuation of investments [continued)
Wheredisputes are notresolved, ihey are escalated to the Board of Direclors of the Manager.

During the lifeofthe FDI, 13 netional value willincrease or decrease (as adjusted for subscriptions and red empions)
as the reference asset increases or decreases in value.

Reallsed gains and losses on financial assets al fair value through prafitorloss represent the difference between
disposal proceeds or valualion and historic cost and lake inte account all brokers’ charges and commissions.
Realized and unrealised gains or losses on financial assels at fair value through profil or loss is recorded in he
slatement of comprehensive income.

[wli

=

Recognition‘derecognition

Regular-way purchases and sales of invesimenis are recognised on trade date - the dale on which the sub-funds
commil to purchase or sell the invesimenis. Invesiments are derecognised when the rights to receive cash fows
from the investmenis have expired or the sub-funds have transferred substanfially all risks and rewards of
ownership.

(<) Derivative financial instruments

Derivalive financial instruments are recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivalive confraciis entered info and
subsequently are re-measured at thelr fair value. All derivatives are carrled as assels when their falr value is p ositive and
as liabilities when their fair value (s negalive. Changes in fair values of derivalives are included in the stalement of
comprehensiveincome. The price is based on counterparty tradable markel price.

id) Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial assels and labllities iraded in activemarkels (such as publicly traded derivatives and Irading
securities) is based on guoted market prices al the date ofthe slatement of financial position.

When the sub-funds hold derivatives with offsetling market risks. ituses mid-market prices as a basis for establishing far
values for the offselting risk positions and applies this bid or asking priceto the net open position, az appropriate,

The fair value of financlal assels and liabllilies that are nollraded in an aclive markel is determined using he bid price
of broker guotes. In particular. the fair value of debt securities is determined by reference to the broker quotes as obtained
from independent pricng sources incdude Finandal Times Evalualed and Bleomberg for Japan Governmaent Bands. For
LLS. Treasury Bills, Ihe pricing sources including Financial Times Interactive Dala and Financial Times Evalualed. The
AUD denominated performance linked notes aims to deliver a refurn linked fo the performance of the ETF Efficiente
Index hedged in ALID until 15 September 2022, while protecting 100% ofthe Note Principal Amount on the Note Malurity.
This level of profeclionis achieved throughthe combination ofthe JGBs and the AUDAPY currency swap.J.P, Morgan
Securilies ple shall assume the responsibillty for making ceraln calculations and determinations, in respectof the ETF
Efficiente Index.

&) Offzetting financial instruments
Financial assels and liabilties are offsel and the net amount iz reported in the slatement offinancial position whean there

I5 a legally enferceablerighito offselthe recognised amounts and thereis an intentionlo sellle on anel basis, orrealise
the assel and sellle the liability simullaneously.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

if Amounts due from/fto broker

Amounts due fromAo broker represent receivables for securities sold and payables for securilies purchased thal have
bean contracted for bul not vet setlled or delivered on theyear end date respeclively.

These amounis are recognised initially al fair value and subsequently measured at amorised cost. Al each raporiing
dale. the sub-funds shall measure the loss allowance on amounts due from broker al an amount equal 1o the lifetime
expecled credit losses if ihe credil risk has increased significanily since inilial recognition. IF, at the repoering date, the
creditrisk has notincreased significantly since inifial recogniion, the sub-funds shall measure the loss allowance at an
amount equal ta 12-month expecled credil losses. Significant financial difculties of the couwnterparties, probability tha
the counterp arties will enter bankruptcy or financial reo rganisation, and defaull in payments are all considered indicaors
that a less allowance may be required. If the creditrisk increasesto the pointihalitis consideredto be creditimp aired,
interestincome will be calculaled based an the gross carrying amount adjusted forthe loss allowance.

g) Income and expenses

Interestincomeis recognised on atime-proportion ate basis using th e effective interest methed. It includes interes! income
from cash and cash equivalents and on debt securities at fair value through profitorloss.

Expenses are accounted foron an accrual basis.
{h) Foreign cumency translation
[i) Funetional and presentation currency

Items included in each of the sub-fund's financial statements are measured using the currency of the primay
economic environmenl inwhich it o perates (1he “functional currency”™). Thizisthe Japanese Yen (the “JPY") for China
2 Bull Fund.China 2x Bear Fund, Gold 2x Bull Fund. Gold 2¢ Bear Fund, India2x Bull Fund, India 2« Bear Fund,
LIS Technology 2x Bull Fund and LIS Technolegy 2x Bear Fund and the Australian Dollar (the "ALD") for ALD Target
Maturity Bond Fund 201609 and ALUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612, which reflacts the primary capital raising
market.

Thefinancial stalements are presented Inthe Japanese Yen (the "JPY ) for China 2% Bull Fund. China 2x Bear Fund.
Gald 2x Bull Fund , Gold 2¢ Bear Fund, Indla 2x Bull Fund, India 2y Bear Fund, US Technology 2x Bull Fund and US
Technolegy 25 Bear Fund and the Australian Dollar (the "AUD") for AUD Target Maturily Bond Fund 201609 and
ALD Target Malurlty Bond Fund 201812,

fii} Transactions and balances

Foreign currency ransaclions are translaled into the funclien al currency using lhe exchangerales prevailing atihe
dates of thetransactions. Foreign currency assets and liabilities are franslated into the funclional currency, using the
gxchange rate prevailing at the financlal position date. Forelgn exchange galns and losses resulling from the
settlement of such fransaclions and from the transiation at year-end/period-end exchange rates of all assels and
llakllities denominated in forelgn currencles are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

The sub-funds do notisolale thal portion efgainsorlosses on trading securilies and defivalive financial inslruments

which is due fo changes inforeign exchange rales from ihat wiich is dueto changes in the markel price of securilies,
Such Auctuations are included inthe nel gains orlosses on financial assels and financial liabiities at fair value th raugh

profit orloss in the statement of comprehensive income,
{iy Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include depo sits held al call wilh banks, other short-lerm highly liquid investments with odgina

malurities of three months or less, and bank overdrafis. Bank overdrafis, ifany. are shown as liabllities in the slatement
of financial position.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

{iy Redeemable participating units

Unitholders may requestthe sub-funds 1o redeem all or any of their units on any redempfion date al the nel assel value
per unit on such redemption date, in accordance with the redemplion procedures, provided that a properly compleed
redemption request, accomp aned by such evidence of ownership as the Transfer Agenl may request, is received by the
Transfer Agent before the relevani dealing deadline.

The minimum redemplion amount that applies o a sub-fund is contained inthe Prospecius or, as the case may be, the

relevant Supplement, The Manager may, in its absolule discrelion, walve the minimum redemptionamount for each class
in general, orin respeci of a specific redemption reguestinwhelearin part,

Unils are classified as financialliablities whenthere are more than one series of class ofunits outstanding fora sub-fund
as al the statement of financial positiond ale as these unils are subject to different rales for managemeni fee calculation
and therafore do not meet all the conditions underlAS 32 (Amendment) “Financial Instrumenis:Presentation” and 1AS 1
(Amendment) “Presentalion of Financial Slatements - Pultable Financial Instrumenis and Obligations Arising on
Liquidation™ for classification as equity. Units are classified as equity when thera i only one series of class of unit
outstanding for asub-fund as at the statement offinancial positien date and these units meet all the ofher conditions of
equity classificalion under IAS 32 (Amendment) “Financial Instruments: Presentation™ and 1AS 1 (Amendmenty
‘Presentation of Financial Statements — Pultable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation”, including
the conditionthatthese units were the mo st subordinated unils in issue in that sub-fund.

k) Taxation

The sub-funds currently incur withholding laxes imposed by cerlain countries on investment income and capilal gans,
Such Incomear gains are recorded gross ef withholding taxes in the statement of comprehensive Income.

Withholdingtaxes are shown as a separale item in the slatement of comprehensive income.
Refer fo Mole 14 for delalls oftaxation.

{1y Preliminary expenses
The preliminary expenses ofthe Trust and each sub-fund are borne by the respective sub-fund, The preliminary expenses
Ineurrad in the establishmeant ofthe Trust and the sub-funds are recognised as expenses ofthe sub-funds in the year In
which they arise.

{m) Distributions

The Manager has ihe absolute discrelionto determine whether a distribution Is to be made, In such an event. an
appropriate amount will be iransferred to a distribution account to be paid on the distribuliondale.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies [continued)

{m) Significant estimates and judgment

The preparation efthefinancial statements requires managementio make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reperted amounts ofassels and liabilities, and the accompanying disclesures, and the disdosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncerainty about these assumplions and estimates could resullin eutcomes thal require a material adjusiment
to the carrying amountof assels orliabilities affected in future periods.

Taxas

Uncerainties exist with respect fo the interpretalion of complex tax reguiations and changes In tax laws an ferdgn
withhalding tax. Given the invesiments in FDI, the differences arising between the actual investmen! income and the
assumplions made, or fulure changes to such assumptions, could necessitate fulure adjusiments to tax expense already
recorded. The sub-funds establish provisions, based on reasonable estimale s, for possible consequences of audits by
{he tax authorities ofthe respective countries inwhich it invests. The amouwnis of such provisions are based on variows
faclors, such as experience of previous lax audils and differing interp relations of tax regul ations by the taxable entity and
the resp onsible tax authority. Such differences ofinterpretation may arise on a wide variely of issues depending onhe
conditions prevaling in the resp ective invesimeni’s demicie. As the sub-funds assess the probability for litigation and
subsequent cash outflow with respectto taxes as remote, no conlingent liabilityhas been recognised.

Refer to Mole 14 for delails oflaxation.
3 Financial risk managemant

The sub-funds’ activities exp o sethem to avariety ofrisks, including butnat limited to markel price risk, interast rate risk,
currency risk, creditrisk and liquidity risk arising from the financial instruments held. Thefinanclal instrumenis are held
in accordance with the published invesiment policies of the sub-funds and managed accordingly to achieve the
investment o bjectives.

Therisks and the respective risk management policies employed by the sub-funds to manageiheserisks are dlscussed
below:

[a) Markiot price sk
Market rizk arzes mainly from uncertainty abow fulure prices of financlal instrumenis held. It represents the polenia
loss the sub-funds might suffer thro ughholding market postions inthe face of price movements. Market risk is managed
by thie Manager. In the case of these sub-fund s, markel riskwithin the Finandal Derivative Instrument will be 5l gnific ant,

but is enlirely in line with investor relurns. Realised and unrealised gains are IGCGQI‘IJS-BH in the stalement of
cemprehensiveincomein iheyearin which hey arise,

As al 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020, the overall markel exposures are as follows:

China 2x Bull Fund

2021 2020
= JFYuoo JFY o0
Listed debl secuntss 231,145 177,142
Total financial assets atfair value through profit or loss 231,145 177,143
Denvatves
-Index swap transachion 3463 11,112
Total financial llabilitie s at fair value through profit or loss 3463 11,1132
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

1
(a)

Finanelal risk management [continued)

Market price sk (continued)

China 2x Bear Fund

2021 2020
JPY 000 JPY 000
Listed dabt secuntsss Bg.021 100,054
Denvatives
-Index swap transachion - 5 152
Tetal financial assets atfair value through profit or loss 28 021 105, 236
Darvalvas
-Indéx swap ransachion 257 =
Taotal financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss IET -
Gold 2x Bull Fund
2021 _2020
JPY 000 JPY 000
Listed debt secuntes a07 422 251,258
Dernvatives
Index swap transachion 40 800
Total financial assets atfair value through profit or loss BO7 422 291 B58
Dervatves
=Indéx swap transaction 122,703
Taotal financial liabilities at fair value through prefit or loss 158, 103 -
Gold 2x Bear Fund
2021 2020
W iTi]
Listed debt secuntess $.403 31,326
Darvalivas
-Index swap transaction 2074 -
Total financial assets atfairvalue through profit or loss 11477 313328
Cerivatives
=Index swap transachion 4 345
Total financial liabilitie s at fair value through prefit or loss 4,345
India 2x Bull Fund
2021 2020
JFY 000
Listed dabl secuntsas 198,228 273,323
Darivatves
-Index swap transachion - T 804
Total financial assets atfair value through profit or loss 198, 238 JE1 127
Derivativas
-Indéx swap transaction 25148 -
Taotal financial liabilities at fair value through prefit or loss FEE] -
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)
3. Finanelal risk management [continued)

{a) Market price sk (continued)

India 2x Bear Fund

203 2020
JPY 000 JPY 000
Listed dabt secuntsss 3,006 26,922
Danvatives
-Indax swap transachion i -
Total financial assets atfairvalue through profit or loss 3014 FERFF:
Darvalvas
-Index swap ransachion 1 356
Taotal financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 1 356
AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609
2021 2020
ALD ALD
Parfomance linked notes 102 880,371 115,851 840
Total financial assets atfair value through profit or loss 102 580,371 115,851,840
AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612
2021 2020
ALD ALID
Performancea linked notes 30431970 36,752 188
Total financial assets atfairvalue through profit or loss 30,431,970 35,752,186
Us Technology 2x Bull Fund
2031 2020
SJEY 000 SJEY 000
Listed debt secuntss 1.305,127 518841
Darnvatives
-Index swap transachion 205 045 37 400
Taotal financial assets atfair value through prefit or loss 1514172 TN
Us Technology 2x Bear Fund
2031 _a0z0
JPY 000 JPY 000
Listed debt secuntes 323314 130,830
Tetal financial assets at fair value through prefit or loss 322,319 130,620
Darvalvias
-Index swap transachion 71484 8,354
Tatal financial liabilities at fair value through prefit or loss 71,4584 g 354

Thetable belowis a summary ofthe significan! seclor and geographic concentrationwithin the sub-funds deb! securithes

portfolioas at 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020.

2021 2020
China 2x Bull Fund
Fairvalue % of NAY Fairvalue % of MAY
JPEY 000 JPY000
Japan
Govamment B9.01 177,143 90 45
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

1
(a)

Finanelal risk management [continued)

Market price sk (continued)

2021 2020
China 2x Bear Fund
Fairvalue %o of NAY Fairvalue Yo of MAY
JPY 000 JPY000
Japan
Govemment 58011 60 65 100, 064 53 39
2021 2020
Gold 2x Bull Fund
Fairvalue %o of NAY Fairvalue Yo of MANV
JPY 000 JPY000
Japan
Govemmaent 807,422 g2 44 251,258 5180
2021 2020
Gold 2x Bear Fund
Fairvalue % of NAW Fairvalue % of MAV
JPY 000 JPY000
Japan
Govemment 9.403 G0 83 31,326 64 60
021 2020
India 2x Bull Fund
Fair value Yo of NAW Fairvalue Yo of MAN
JPY 000 JPY000
Japan
Govemment 193,228 7013 273.323 5T GO
2021 2020
India 2x Bear Fund
Fairvalue %o of NAY Fairvalue Yo of MAY
JPY 000 JPY000
Japan
Govamnmant 3,006 66 43 6. 9232 G a0
2021 2020
AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609
Fairvalue Yo of NAW Fairvalue Yo of MAV
AUD ALD
Jersey
Financial 102 880 371 09 60 118,851 840 0927
2021 2020
ALUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612
Fairvalue % of NAY Fairvalue % of AV
AUD ALID
Jerzey
Financal 30431870 9857 35,752,188 99.25
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)
3. Finanelal risk management [continued)

{a) Market price sk (continued)

2021 2020
US Technology 2x Bull Fumnd
Fairvalue %o of NAY Fairvalue Yo of MAY
JPY 000 JPY000
Japan
Govemment 1,305 127 T5 61 518 941 55 09
2021 2020
Us Technology 2x Bear Fund
Fairvalue %o of NAY Fairvalue Yo of MANV
JPY 000 JPY000
Japan
Govemmaent 322,318 68.73 130,620 94 77

The sub-funds have open swap confracl positions with J.P, Morgan Chase Bank M.A under financial sector wih
geagraphical concentration afEngland.

Pricerisk sensitivity provided below is assessed by shifting the relevant underying index by +1% (30 June 2020: +1%)
or-1% (20 June 2020; -1%). The sensilivity is deducled from lhe change in the derivative price due to the ap plied shift
and is presented in lhe currency, as follows:

Fund Underlying Effect on net Effect on net Effect on net Effect on net
shiftin assets % assets (JPY)- assets % assets (JPY)-

percentage 30 June 2021 30 June 2021 30 June 2020 30 June 2020

1% 1% =34 826 1% 111,121

China 2x Bull Fund 1% 1% 34 626 -1%% 11,121
1% 1% -2.561 1% 54,187

China 2xBearFund -1% 1% 2581 -1% -54 187
1% 1% -1,387 020 1% 402,187

Gold 2x Bull Fund =1% 1% 1,597,030 1% 02,187
1% 1% 20,735 1% 43451

Gold 2x BearFund -1% -1% -20,735 -1% 43451
1% 1% 25,191 1% TE045

India 2= BullFund 1% 1% 25191 -1% -TEO45
1% 1% 104 1% 13562

India Zx Baar Fund =1% “1% -104 1% 13,562
ALUD Target Maturity Bond 1% 1% 1.028 962 1% 1,188,518
Fund 2016509 -1% -1% -1,028 262 -1% -1,188 518
ALD Targat Matunty Bond 1% 1% 304 320 1% 357,522
Fund 201612 1% 1% -504,320 1% 357,522
US Technalogy 2x Bl 1% 1% 2,080,671 1% 74,004
Fund -1% -1%% -2.080 671 -1% 374 1004
US Technology 2x Baar 1% 1% -T14,274 1% -83.589
Fund -1% -1% T14,274 -19% 83589
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)
3. Finanelal risk management [continued)
) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arizes from the effecis of fluclualions in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on thefair value of
financial assels and liabililies andfiure cash Nows.

China 2x Bull Fund, China 2x Bear Fund, Gold 2x Bull Fund, Gold 2x Bear Fund , India 2x Bull Fund, India 2x Bear Fund,
US Technelogy2x Bull Fund and US Technolo gy 2x Bear Fund are exposedio ihelr invesimentin Japanese Government
Bonds. Wheninterest rates decline, the value of fixed rate securilies, which may include Japan Government Bonds, can
be expected to rise. Conversely, when Inferestirates rise. the value of fixed rale porifolio securities can be expected o
decline.

As at 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020, an Increase/decrease ofinterest rales with all other variables remaining constant,
would rasull in a decreasedncrease ofthe net assets aiributable to unitholders of China 2x Bull Fund by ap proximatey
JPY T3T,230, 0.26% (30 June 2020; JPY 569,867 32, 0.29%).

As at 20 June 2021 and 30 June 2020, an increase/decrease ofinterestrales wilh all other variables remaining constani,
would resull in a decreasefincrease ofthe nel assels atiributable to unilhelders of China 2x Bear Fund by ap proximately
JPY 113,205, 0.92% (30 June 2020; JPY 333.611.38, 0.20%).

As at 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020, an increase/decrease ofinterest rales with all other variables remaining constant,
would resull in a decreasefincrease of the net assels aliibulable fo unitholders of Gold 2x Bull Fund by approximalely
JPY 2193439, 0.22% (30 June 2020: JPY 1.000493.70, 0.21%).

As at 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020, an increase/decrease ofinteresi rales with all other variables remaining constant,
would resull in a decreasefincrease ofthe nel assets aliributable to unitholders of Gold 2x Bear Fund by approximatety
JPY 17,330, 0.11% (30 June 2020: JPY 103,964 .24, 0.23%).

As at 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020, an Increase/decrease ofinteresi rales with all other variables remaining constant,
would resull In a decreasefincrease of the nel assels aliributable fo unitholders ofindia 2x Bull Fund by approximaiey
JPY 1,112.455, 0.29% (30 June 2020: JPY 1.226.031.22, 0.30%).

As at 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020, an increase/decrease ofinterest rales with all other variables remaining constant,
would resull In a decreasefincrease ofth e net assels aliributable fo unitholders of india 2x Bear Fund by approximately
JPEY 29,924, 0.52% (30 June 2020: JPY B88.143.93, 0.23%).

As at 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020, an increase/decrease afinteresl rates with all oth er variables remaining constant,
would resull in a decreasefincrease of the net assels attributable to unitholders of US Technology 2x Bull Fund by
approximately JPY 5,695,555, 0.33% (30 June 2020: JPY 3,115.528.70, 0.33%).

As at 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020, an increase/decrease of interest rates with all other variables remaining constant,
would resull in a decreasedncrease of the nel assels aliributable lo unitholders of US Technology 2x Bear Fund by
approximately JPY 1,522 969, 0.32% (30 June 2020: JPY 515.797.17. 0.37%).
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)
3. Finanelal risk management [continued)

) Interest rate risk (eontinued)

China 2x Bull Fund
MNendnterest
Az at 30 June 2021 bearing Total
Upto 1 year 1&years OverSyears
JPY 000 JPY000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000

Aszsets
Current assets
Financial assais al farvalue through prafit orloss 231,145 - - - 231,145
Interast recanable T3 - - T3
Due from untholdars - - - 345 345
Managemant fes rebateraceable - - - 3183 3183
Otherrecevables and pre-payment - 824 524
Cash and cash équivalants 29,298 - - - 249,248
Total assets 260,518 - - 4 a2 64 918
Liabilites
Current liabilities
Financial lsabilibes at fair vake through proft or lss 3463 . 3463
Dus to unitholders . : a7 a7
Accrued exXpenseas - - - 1,685 1.685
Taotal liabilities 3463 - - 1782 5 245
MNendnterest
As at 30 June 2020 beardng Total
Upto1year 1&6years OverSyears
JPY 000 JPY 000 SJPY 000 SJPY 000 JPY 000
Assets
Current assets
Financial assals al farvaise through prafit or loss 177143 - - . 177,143
Intarest recanable a2 - - - a2
Due from untholders - - - 241 441
Managemant fes rebaterecenable - - - B33 633
Otherrecevables and pre-payment - - - T8 718
Cash and cash @ quivalents 30,947 : - - 30,947
Total assets S0, 1448 - - 1,092 Z04 H 14
Liabilities
Current |labllities
Financial labilite s at fairvakie through protl or loss 11,112 . - - 11,112
ACcrured Sxpenses - . - 2,951 2,951
Total liabilities KK 2851 TGS
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
3. Finanelal risk management [continued)

) Interest rate risk {continued)

China 2x Bear Fund
MNendnterest
Az at 30 June 2021 bearing Total
Upto 1 year 1&years OverSyears
JPY 000 JPY000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000

Aszsets
Current assets
Financial assais al farvalue through prafit orloss 58021 - - - 58021
Interast recenable 18 - - - 18
Amaount dus from brokears - - - 1 1
Due from untholders - - - 244 2449
Management fee rebateracenable - - - 3,147 3.147
Otherreceables and pre-paymant - - 1,454 1454
Cash and cash equvalents 34 853 - - - 34 853
Total aszets g2 842 - - 4 901 a7 743
Liabilities
Current labilities
Financial liabilitie s at fairvakse throuwgh prof or loss 227 . - 237
Accrued exXpensas - - - 1,878 1.8743
Taotal liabilities 257 - - 1878 2135
MNendnterest
As at 30 June 2020 beardng Total
Upto1year 1&6years OverSyears
JPY 000 JPY 000 SJPY 000 SJPY 000 JPY 000
Assets
Current assets
Financial assals al farvaise through prafit or loss 105,236 - - - 105,236
Intarest recanable 17 - - - 17
Amount due from brokers - - - 283 283
Managemeant fes rebaterecenable - - - asT 387
Otherrecevables and pre-payment - 1,343 1.343
Cash and cash @ quivalents BT 435 : - - 67,455
Total assets 17, 08 - - 1,953 174,701
Liabilities
Current |labllities
Dug to unitholders - . . 14 032 14,022
Accrued Sxpenses - . - 2,783 2,783
Total liabilities - . - LK 15,815
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
3. Finanelal risk management [continued)

) Interest rate risk (eontinued)

Gold 2x Bull Fund
MNendnterest
Az at 30 June 2021 bearing Total
Upto 1 year 1&years OverSyears
JPY 000 JPY000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000
Aszsets
Current assets
Financial assais al farvalue through prafit or kess 207 422 - - - 207 422
Interast recanable 247 - - - 247
Due from untholdars - - - 493 493
Managemant fes rebateraceable - - - 2778 2778
Otherrecevables and pre-payment - - - 1,113 1,113
Cash and cash équivalants 329 457 - - - 129,457
Total assets 1,137,126 - - 4,354 1141510
Liabilites
Current liabilities
Financial lsabilibes at fair vake through proft or lss 159,703 . 159,703
Accrrgd @X panses - . 2447 2447
Total liabilities 159,703 : - 2447 162,150
Noen-inte rest
Az at 30 June 2020 bearing Total
Upto1year 1&Eyears Oversyears
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 00 JPY 000 JPY 000
Assets
Current assets
Financial 855815 at farvalee through prafl or loss 281,838 . - . 291,858
Intarast recenable 48 . . - 48
Apvount dus from brokers - 1,435 1435
Due from untholders - 9,804 9,804
Otherrecevables and pre-payment - - - 1,017 1.017
Cash and cash equivalants 203 040 - - - 203 840
Total assets 4895 G4E - - 12,456 S0 103
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Amaount due to brokers - - - 7155 155
Dus to unitholders - - - 19,063 19,063
Accrued Sxpenses - . - 3215 3,225
Total liabilities - . - FETE] PRI
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

3. Finanelal risk management [continued)
) Interest rate risk (eontinued)
Gold Zx Bear Fund
MNendnterest
Az at 30 June 2021 bearing Total
Upto 1 year 1&years OverSyears
JPY 000 JPY000 JPYO00 JPY 000 JPY 000
Assets
Current assets
Financial assais al farvalue through prafit orloss 11477 - 11477
Interast recenable 3 - 3
Managemant fes rebataracenable - 2238 2,238
Otherrecenvables and pre-payment - 1,307 1.307
Cash and cash equivalants 2 358 - 2. 358
Taotal assets 13 838 3,243 17 381
Liabilities
Current |labllities
Amount due to brokers - 1449 149
ACCried Sxpenses - 1,775 1.775
Total liabilities 1,924 1.924
Nendnterest
As at 30 June 2020 bearing Total
Upto 1 year 16years OverSyears
JPEY D00 SJPY000 JPYT00 SPY 000 JPY 000
Assets
Current assets
Financial asssats at farvaiue through profit or loss 31326 31.328
Intargst mcanable 3 - 3
Amoaunt due from brokers - 08 408
Cue fram untholders - 4728 4728
Managemant fiee rebaterscenable - agd 484
Otherrecevables and pre-payment - 1,194 1,154
Cash and cash equivalants 12 013 - 12918
Total aszsets 44 249 5,514 51,063
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilites at fairvalkie through profk or loss 4 345 - 4345
ACCed $Xpenses - 1,708 1,708
Total liabilities 4 545 1,708 G023
a0
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)
3. Finanelal risk management [continued)

) Interest rate risk (eontinued)

India Zx Bull Fund
MNendnterest
Az at 30 June 2021 bearing Total
Upto 1 year 1&years OverSyears
JPY 000 JPY000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000

Aszsets
Current assets
Financial assais al farvalue through prafit orloss 198 228 - - - 198 228
Interast recanable 63 - 63
Managemant fes rebataracenable - - - 3,257 3257
Otherrecenvables and pre-payment - - - a7 187
Cash and cash equivalants 85 531 - - - 85,531
Taotal assets I ENFF] . - 3644 J87 466
Liabilities
Current |labllities
Financial abilite s at fair vakie through prof or loss 2519 . - - 2.519
Due to unitholders - . - 170 170
Accred ex ponses - . 2136 2136
Total liakilities 2,519 . - 2,308 4 825
Noen-inte rest
Az at 30 June 2020 bearing Total
Upto1year 1&Eyears Oversyears
JPY 000 JPY000 JPYO0D SJPY 000 JPY 000
Assets
Current assets
Financial assels al farvahee through proftorloss 281,127 . - - 281,127
Intarest receiable 70 a - - 70
Apvount dus from brokers - - - 73 13
Due from untholders - - - 13,816 18,816
Managemant fes rebaterecenable - - - 231 231
Otherrecevables and pre-payment - BES BES
Cash and cash @ quivalents 112,902 : - - 112,802
Total assets SHE 0EY - - (R EREEET)
Liabilities
Current |labllities
Amount dug to brokers - - - G676 GI6
Due to wnitholders : . - 4120 4120
tele VL A T : : - 4 760 4750
Total liakilities - . - 2,256 8,556

=1
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)
3. Finanelal risk management [continued)

) Interest rate risk (eontinued)

India 2x Bear Fund
MNendnterest
Az at 30 June 2021 bearing Total
Upto 1 year 1&years OverSyears
JPY 000 JPY000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000
Aszsets
Current assets
Financial assais al farvalue through prafit orloss 2014 - - - 3014
Interast recenable 1 - - - 1
Amaount dus from brokears - - - 1,001 1.001
Due from untholders - - - kA 3
Management fee rebateracenable - - - 1,383 1.383
Otherreceables and pre-paymant - - 1,280 1.280
Cash and cash equvalents 807 - - - 207
Total aszets 3 822 - - 3705 T.527
Liabilities
Current labilities
Dus to unitholders - : - 1.242 1.242
Accrued exXpenseas - - - 1,764 1.764
Taotal liabilities - - - 3006 3 008
MNendnterest
As at 30 June 2020 beardng Total
Upto1year 1&6years OverSyears
JPY 000 JPY 000 SJPY 000 SJPY 000 JPY 000
Assets
Current assets
Financial assals al farvaise through prafit or loss 26822 - - - 26,922
Intarest recanable 5 - - - 5
Amount due from brokers - - - 119 119
Cue from untholders - - - 3312 3322
Managemant fes rebaterecenable - - - a18 18
Otherrecerables and pre-paymant - . - 1,477 1477
Cash and cash équivalents 9087 - - - SO87
Total assets 36 014 - - 5536 42 450
Liabilities
Current [labilities
Finarcial labilite 5 at fair value through proft or loss 1356 d 1,556
Acriied G parses . . - 2032 2022
Total liakilities 1,326 - - 2,022 3378
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)
3. Finanelal risk management [continued)

) Interest rate risk (eontinued)

AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201605

MNendnterest
Az at 30 June 2021 bearing Total
Upto 1 year 1&years OverSyears

AUD AUD ALD ALD ALID
Aszsets
Current assets
Financial assais al farvalue through prafit orloss - 02 880 3T - - 102,880,371
Interast recenable 184, 845 - - - 184,845
Amaount dus from brokers - - - 191,583 191,583
Otherrecenvables and pre-payment - - - 2517043 2517 033
Cash and cash equivalants 93 865 - - - 93 865
Total assets 218 710 102 830 31 - 20708 6836 105 857 /07
Liabilities
Current |labllities
Managemant fea payable - - - 202,214 02,214
Cue to unitholders - ] . 191,216 191,216
Accrrgd @X panses - . 2182357 2182537
Total liabilities - : - 2575867 2,575,867

Noen-inte rest
Az at 30 June 2020 bearing Total
Upto1year 1&Eyears Oversyears

AUD AUD ALD ALD ALUD
Assets
Current assets
Financial 855815 al far value through prafit orloss = 118,831,840 - - 118.8531,80
Intarest reconatie 1566) . B . (S6E)
Anvount dus from brokers - - - 19,490 19,480
Otherreceables and pre-payment - - - 2,618,710 2,618,710
Cash and cash equivalents 22496588 - - - 229 648
Total assets 229132 115,851,540 - 2E38.:200 121,119,172
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Due to wnitholders - s - 19,244 19444
Acciued exXpensas - - - 1.971 850 1.971.850
Total liabilities - - - 1,991,294 1,981 294
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
3. Finanelal risk management [continued)
() Interest rate risk (eontinued)

AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612

MNendnterest
Az at 30 June 2021 bearing Total
Upto1 year 1&years OverSyears

ALD AUD ALD ALUD ALD
Aszsets
Current assets
Financial assais al farvalue through prafit orloss - 30431970 - - 304321870
Interast recanable g7 - - T
Otherraceables and pre-payment - 679,700 674,700
Cash and cash equivalents 52851 - - - 62,951
Total as=ets B3. 760  J0431010 - 6o 00 ST.T5 430
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Management fes payable - - - 45 314 45 214
Accnied expensas - . - 565210 S6£.210
Total liabilities : . 15424 G13.4.24

Nen-dnterest
As at 30 June 2020 bearing Total
Upto1year 16years OverSyears

ALD ALD ALD ALD AUD
Assets
Current assets
Finandcial assals at farvalue through prafit orloss - 35752185 - - 5,752,186
Interest recenable (847} - - - {847)
Otherrecanabios and pre-payment - 719,688 719,688
Cash and cash equivalents 55,533 : - = 53,533
Total assets 54 8356 35752 185 - TI9BBE 36526510
Liabilites
Current [labilities
ACiied €XPEnses : . - 502 697 S02.697
Total liabilities - . S0d BaT SOZEaT

a4
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

3. Finanelal risk management [continued)
() Interest rate risk (eontinued)
Us Technology 2x Bull Fund
MNendnterest
Az at 30 June 2021 bearing Total
Upto1 year 1&years OverSyears
JPY 000 JPY000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000
Aszsets
Current assets
Financial assais al farvalue through prafit or kess 1.514 172 - 1.514 172
Interast recanable 2849 - 289
Amaount dus from brokers - 3,838 18356
Due from untholders - 163,049 163,049
Managemeant fee rebateracenable - 1,323 1.323
Otherreceablas and pre-paymant - - 41 541
Cash and cash equvalents 115 854 - - 115 8494
Total assets 1,630 355 168,749 1,795 104
Liabilities
Current labilities
Amvount dua to brokers - 17,847 17 847
Due to unitholders - 33,806 33,896
Accrued eXpensss - 21,256 21,256
Total liabilities 73,049 73049
Nendnterest
As at 30 June 2020 bearing Total
Upto1year 1&6years OverSyears
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000
Assets
Current assels
Financial assats al farvaiuse through prafit ofloss 556,341 558,341
Interest recenable 105 - 105
Amount dus from brokers - B.57T 86577
Due from untholders - 314 320 314,320
Managemant fes ebateratenable - GES GES
Cash and cash equivalents 224 631 - 224 621
Total assets T81.067 321 582 1,103 8440
Liabilities
Current [labilities
Amvount dus Lo brokers 170,371 170,311
Acrired dx parses 5 460 5460
Total liakilities - 175,831 173,831
55
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
3. Finanelal risk management [continued)

() Interest rate risk (eontinued)

Us Technology 2x Bear Fund
MNendnterest

Az at 30 June 2021 bearing Total
Upto1 year 1&years OverSyears

JPY 000 JPY000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000

Aszsets
Current assets
Financial assais al farvalue through prafit orloss 322,319 - - - 322,319
Interast recanable 33 - - - 53
Amaount dus from brokers - - - 1,313 1.313
Due from untholders - - - 94 a8
Managemeant fee rebateracenable - - - 2320 2.320
Otherreceablas and pre-paymant - - 535 5315
Cash and cash equvalents 220 316 - - - 2203156
Total assets 542 688 - - 4 267 546 955
Liabilities
Current labilities
Financial labilitee s at fair valkie through prot orloss 71484 . . E Tl4g4
Due to unitholders - - - 492 442
Accrued eXpensss - - - 6,026 & 026
Total liabilities 71454 - - 6518 TE.002
Nendnterest
As at 30 June 2020 bearing Total
Upto1year 1&6years OverSyears
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000
Assets
Current assels
Financial assats al farvaiuse through prafit orloss 130,620 - - - 130,620
Interest recenable 19 - - - 19
Amount dus from brokers - - - 32,027 32027
Due from untholders - - - 6563 6563
Managemant fea ebateratenable - - - T80 T80
Cash and cash equivalents 102,175 - - - 103,175
Total assets 233 814 - - 19 330 373 194
Liabilities
Current [labilities
Finarcial li2bilite 5 at fair value through proft aorloss 8,329 d 8,529
Amaint dua to brokers . . - 1618 1.618
Due to unitholders - - - 123722 123722
Accried 8Xpenses - . 1672 1672
Taotal liabilities £.354 . 127 012 13551

ic) Cumency risk
Currency risk is therisk that the value effinancial instruments will flucluale due to changes inforeign exchange rates.

The sub-funds may invest in financial Instruments and anter inlo transaclions denominaled in currencles other than s
functional currency. Consequently, the sub-funds are exposed o risks that the exchange rate of its fun clional currency
reélative to olher forelgn currencles may change in a manner thal has an adverse impacton the value af that poien of
the sub-funds' assels or liabilities denominated in currencies ofher than the sub-funds functional currency.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
3. Finanelal risk management [continued)
(3] Cumency risk (continued)

The sub-funds, China 2x Bull Fund, China 2x Bear Fund, Gold 2x Bull Fund, Gold 2¢ Bear Fund. India 2x Bull Fund, India
23 Bear Fund, US Technology 2 Bull Fund and US Technology 2x Bear Fund hold monetary assets denominated in
currencies olher thanithe Jap anese Yen, the functional currency. The sub-funds, AUD Targel Malurily Bond Fund 201603
and AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612, hold monelary assets denominaled incurrencies otherthan the Ausiralian
Dollar, the functional currency. Currency risk, as defined inlFRS T, arlses as th e value of fulure Iransaciions. recognizd
menelary assels and monetary liabilities denominated in other currencies fluciuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates. Under IFRS 7, the forelgn exchange exposure relatinglo non-moenelary assels and llablliies |5 considered to be a
component ofmarket price risk instead offersignexchange risk.

During the year ended 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020 for China 2x Bull Fund, China 2x Bear Fund, Gold 2x Bull Fund,
Gold 2¢ Bear Fund , India 2x Bull Fund, |ndia 2x Bear Fund, ALID Targel Maturity Bond Fund 201602, ALID Target Malurity
Bond Fund 2018612, US Technology 2x Bull Fund and US Technology 2x Bear Fund there has been a reduced foreign
currency risk, as the sub-funds invesiments are in the funclional curréncy of the sub-fund.

The tables below summarise the sub-funds®financial assets and liabilities which are expo sed lo the risk associaled with
the effects of fluctuations In the prevaiing levels of currency riskon its financial postion and cash fMlows, which are as
follows:

China 2x Bull Fund

As at 30 June 2021

UsD

SJPY 000
Asgets
Current agsets
Qtherrecenables and prepaymmsant 524
Total assets 524
Liabilltes
Current |labllities
Administration fee payabie 1,255
AL e pavenle 114
Otherpayables 316
Total liakilities 1,685
MNet currencyexposure [BE1)
As at 30 June 2020

IS0

SJEY 000
Assets
Current assels
Qtherrecaables and prepaymant g
Total assets 118
Liabillties
Current |labllities
Adminstration fee payable 1,083
Audit fes payable 1,287
Otherpayables 581
Total llabllities 2851
MNet currencyexposure {2.233)

=T
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

3

e

Finanelal risk management [continued)

Cumency risk (continued)
China 2x Bear Fund

Az at 30 June 2021

USD

JPY 000
Assets
Current assets
COtherracerables and prepaymant 1,454
Total aszeats 1,854
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Admminstrabion fea payabls 1,255
Audit fas payvable 432
Gtherpavables 581
Total llabilities 1518
Mt currency exposure (4234
Az at30 Jume 2020

UsD

JPY 000
Assets
Current agsets
Ctherrecenables and prepaymsant 1343
Total aszsets 1,343
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Addrninistration e payabka 1,083
AUt faa pavable 724
Otherpayablas S76
Total liabkilities 2,783
MNet currency axXposure {1.440)
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
3. Finanelal risk management [continued)

(3] Cumency risk (continued)

Gold Zx Bull Fund
As at 30 June 2021

USD

JPY 000
Assets
Current assets
COtherracerables and prepaymant 1,113
Total aszeats EE]
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Admminstrabion fea payabls 1,253
Audit fas payvable S60
Gtherpayables 532
Total llabilities 2 ady
et currency exposure {1.334)
As at 30 June 2020

UsD

SJEY 000
Assets
Current assels
Crtharrecarvablos and prepayant 1,017
Total assets 1,017
Liabllities
Current labilities
Administration fes payvabbs 1,062
AUGIL Tee pavable 217
Otherpayablas 547
Total liabilities 2448
Net currencyexposure (1.429)

29
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

3. Finanelal risk management [continued)

(3] Cumency risk (continued)

Gold Zx Bear Fund
As at 30 June 2021

uso

JEY 000
Assets
Current assets
COtherracerables and prepaymant 1,307
Total aszeats 1307
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Adrminestrabion fea payabls 1,255
Audit fes pavable 15
Gtherpavables SO5
Total liabilities ki
Mt currency exposure [468)
As at 30 June 2020

uso

JPY 000
Assets
Current assels
Cetharrecanablas and prapayment 1,194
Total assets 1,194
Liabllities
Current labilities
Administration fes payable 1,082
Agdit o pavable 40
Otherpayablas 586
Tetal liabilities 1 708
Net currencyexposure (514}
India Zx Bull Fund
As at 30 June 2021

uso

JEY 000
Assets
Current assets
Ctherreceables and prepayment a7
Total assets LRy
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Adrninistration fee payabie 1,835
Audit fea payable 150
Otherpayvables 7131
Total liabilities KL
MNet currencyexposure {1.749)
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

3. Finanelal risk management [continued)

(3] Cumency risk (continued)

As at 30 June 2020

UsD

SJPY 000
Assets
Current aszets
Otherrecenables and prapaymant GES
Total assets )
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Adrninstration e e payvable 1,083
Audit fes payvable 2 498
Ctherpayabies 1,178
Total liabilities 3.160
Net currencyexposure (4.095)
India 2x Bear Fund
Az at 30 June 2021

UsD

JPY 000
Assets
Current agzets
Otherrecenvables and prepayment 1,280
Total assets 1,290
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Addenintration feo payable 1.25%
ALt fee payale 3
Otherpayablas S08
Total liabilities 1,764
Met currencyexposure [474)
Az at 30 June 2020

UsD

SJPY 000
Assets
Current aszets
Otherrecerables and prapayment 1,477
Total assets 1A
Liabilities
Current liakilities
Adrrinistration fee payabe 1,083
Audit fes pavable 238
Otherpayables 701
Total liakilities 2020
MNet currencyexposure (B4

3

186/306



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

kS
e

Finanelal risk management [continued)

Cumency risk (continued)
Us Technology 2x Bull Fund

Az at 30 June 2021

uso

JEY 000
Assets
Current assets
Otherracerables and prepaymeant 41
Total aszeats 1
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Admminstrabion fea payabls 611
Audit fes pavable 2187
Gtherpavables 17 4485
Total liabilities pEIFEL]
Mt currency exposure [20.T15)
As at 30 June 2020

uso

JPY 000
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Adrninestraton fae pavable 470
Audit fes payable (4]
Trustae fee payabe 127
Otherpavables 4 674
Total liabilities 5,460
Mgt eurrency exposure 15.460)
US Technology 2x Bear Fund
Ag at 30 June 2021

uso

JPY 000
Asgets
Current assets
Otherrecervables and prepayment 535
Total assets 235
Liabilities
Current liakilities
Adminestration fee payable 611
Audit fes payable 891
Otherpayables 4 524
Total liakilities B 026
Mt currency exposure {5,497)

B2
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
3. Finanelal risk management [continued)

(3] Cumency risk (continued)
Us Technology 2x BearFund (continued)

As at 30 June 2020

Liabilities
Current labkilties

uso
JPEY 000

Administration fee payabls aTn
Audit fes payable 57
Trustes fes payabls 127
COtherpayablss 1,018
Tatal liabilities 1612
MNet currencyexposure {1.672)

Ag at 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020, the sub-funds. ALUD Targel Maturity Bond Fund 201609 and ALID Targ et Maturity
Bond Fund 201612 financial assels and liabilities are denominated in the functional currency and there has been no

exposureto forelgn currency risk.

id) Credit risk

Credil risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to discharge its obligations and causes the
sub-fundsto incur afinancial loss, The sub-funds seek o minimisethe risk ofloss by careful choosingth e counterparties

and by minimisingthereliance placed onindividual counlerparties.

Investors should be aware that the sub-funds use dervatives such as swap Iransaclions, When a swap fransacion
approaches maturity they may increasein value to reflect the amounts payablefo Ihe sub-funds and consequently coud
represent an increased porlion of the MNet Asset Value of a sub-fund. Mo guarantee is given, express or implied, tha
Unithalders will recelve back the amount of thelr investment in the Unils.

B3
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

3. Finanelal risk management [continued)
(d) Credit rizk (continuad)
China 2x Bull Fund
30 June 2021
Credit rating Source of credit rating o of NAY
Dubt cacunties A SE&F Global 8901
30 June 2020
Dbl secunties Al SEP Global a0 45
China 2x Bear Fund
30 June 2021
Credit rating Source of credit rating % of MAY
Debt secunties A1 S54F Global G0 65
30 June 2020
Dwbt secunties At S5&F Global 63349

Gold 2x Bull Fund

30 June 2021

Credit rating Source of credit rating % of NAY
Dot secunties A S&F Global 8244
30 June 2020
Dbl secwnbies Al S5&F Glabal 5%.80
Gold 2x Bear Fund
30 June 2021

Credit rating Source of creditrating ¥ of NAY
Dubt sacunties At S&P Glabal 60 83
30 June 2020
Dwbt sacunties A S&F Global 59 B0
India 2x Bull Fund
30 June 2021

Credit rating Source of creditrating ¥ of NAY
Debt secunties At S&F Global 7013
30 June 2020
Dwbt secunties A1 S&F Global 57 60
India 2x Bear Fund
30 June 2021

Credit rating Source of credit rating o of NAY
Dwbt secunties At S&F Global GE 449
30 June 2020
Dbt secunties A S5&F Global 63,90
ALID Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609
30 June 2021

Credit rating Source of credit rating o of NAY
Performance linked note Mot Rated 5&F Global 99 60
30 June 2020
Parformanca linkad nate Nat Ratad S5&P Glabal 949 27
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

kS
id)

Finanelal risk management [continued)

Credit rizk (continuad)

AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612

30 June 2021

Credit rating
Parformancs linkad note Not Ratad
30 June 2020
Parfarmancs inkad nate Not Ratead
US Technology 2x Bull Fund
30 June 2021

Credit rating
Debt secunties A1
30 June 2020
Dwbt secunties At
S Technology 2x Bear Fund
30 June 2021

Credit rating
Dot secunties A
30 June 2020
Dbl secwnbies Al

Source of credit rating
S&P Global

S&P Globkal

Source of credit rating
SAP Global

S5&F Global

Source of credit rating
S&F Global

58F Glabal

Yo of MAY
09 .57

b of MAY
T5.61

55.99

W of MAY
62.73

9377

The sub-funds measure credil risk and expected credit losses using probabiliy of defaull, exposure of defaull and loss
given default. The Manager considers both historical analysis and forward looking information in determining any

expected credit loss.

As at 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020, the sub-funds had all ils individual counterparty risk with J.P.Morgan Chase Bank
M.A. and EMP Paribas Securities Services eperatingihrough its Singapore Branch.J.P.Morgan ChaseBankMA. has a
credit rating of A2 (30 June 2020: A2) on Moody's and equivalent ratings with S&F Global and Fitch. BNP Paribas
Securifies Services operating throughiis Singapere Branch has a creditrating of Aa3 (30 June 2020: Aad) on Moody's
and equivalent ralings with S&P Global and Filch. The counterparties are expected to sellle the outstanding within 1

wenak.

The Manager considersihe probability of d efaulito be closeto zero asthe counterparies have a siron g cap acky lo meel

their contractual obligations in the near term.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
3. Finanelal risk management [continued)
fa) Counterparty risk

In order to monitorthe exposure 1o the counterparly. sub-funds have to limit their exposurelo a counlerparty at a cerain
percentage of their MAY. This is dane through the deliveryby the counterparty afthe sub-fund s of securities as collaleral

Collateral securities relaliveto the sub-funds, China 2x Bull Fund. China 2x Bear Fund, Gold 2x Bull Fund . Gold 2x Bear
Fund, India 2x Bull Fund, India 2x Bear Fund, US Technology 2x Bear Fund and US Technology 2x Bear Fund, are
measured al fair value on a daily basis.

As al 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020, the sub-funds valualion of the collateral securilies heldwith/used by J.P. Morgan
Chase Bank N.A. are set oul below:

Derivative
valuation Collateral Met exposure
heldf{used)

SJPYO00 JEY 000 SJPY 000
As at 30 June 2021
China 2x Bull Fund [3.462) - {3,463}
China 2x Bear Fund (25T} 257 -
okd 2x Bull Fuend [159,703) 145410 (14,283}
Gakd 2= BearFund 2,074 [1.834) 240
India 2x Bull Fund (2,519) 2,519 E
Inidia 2x BearFund 8 - 4
US Technology 2x BullFund 209,045 (142,987 ) BE 058
US Technology 2x Bear Fund {71,484} 56,748 (14, T36)

Derivative

valuation Collateral Met exposure

heldf{used)

JPY00 JPY D00 JPY 000
As at 30 June 2020
China 2x Bull Furd {11,112} 11,112 B
China 2x Bear Fund 5,152 - 5152
Gold 2xBull Fund 40,500 - 40,500
Gobd 2« BearFund (4.345) 3553 (T2}
Imdia 2x Bull Fund 7,804 - 7,804
India 2x BearFund {1.356) 1.301 (35}
US Technology 2x BullFund AT 400 {11.483) 25,817
US Technology 2x Bear Fund (8,354} T.059 (1,300}
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

kS
in

Finanelal risk management [continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity riskis theriskihat the sub-funds may nol be able lo generale sufficieni cash resources o sellletheir obligaions

in Tull as they fall due ar can only do 5o on lerms thal are materially disadvantageous.

Inthecase of subscriplions or redemptions, the Manager will respectively purchase or sell the equivalent amount of the

Financial Derivalive Instrumeni.

To thal extent, each sub-fund ben efits from daily liquidity on each Financial Derlvative Instrumant. The swap Counlarpany
is engaged in providing each sub-fund with daily liquidity. In case of subscriptions or redemption s, the Man ager will invest

the equivalent amountin cash orin accord ance with itz invesiment o bjeclive.

Thetable below analyses the sub-funds' financialliabilities inte relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining p erod
from theyear end date lo the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual undiscounied cash
flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances, astheimpacl of discountingis not significant.

China 2% Bull Fund

Financial labilites at fair vakse through prof or oss
Adrinistration fee pavable

Audit fea payable

Cue to unitholders

Otherpavables

Total liabilities

China 2x Bear Fund

Financial labiltes at fairvalue through profé or loss
Adminstration fee payabls

Audit fee payable

DCue to wnithalders

Otherpayablas

Total liabilities

2021 2020
Lessthang Légss than B
muonths months
JPY 000 JPY 000
3463 11,112
1,255 1.083
114 1.287
a7
316 551
5,245 14 063
2021 2020
Lessthané Less thanb
maonths manths
JPY 000 JPY 000
257 -
1.255 1.083
43 T24
- 14,032
581 a7
2135 16,815
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

kS
in

Finanelal risk management [continued)

Liguidity risk {continued)

Geold 2x Bull Fund

Financial eabilibe s at fair valie through prof or loss
Adminstration fee payabls

Audit fes payable

Managemant fee payatia

Amount dua to brokers

Duea to unithalders

Otherpayables

Taotal liabilites

Gold 2x Bear Fund

Finarncial abiltss at farvakis through proil of loss
Adrminestration fee payabls

Audit fes payable

Amount due bo brokers

Ctherpayables

Teotal liabilities

India 2x Bull Fund

Financial liabilites at fairvakie through prof or loss
Administration fes payable

Addit fes pavadle

Amaount due to brokers

Due to unitholders

COtherpayablss

Taotal liabilities

India 2x Bear Fund

Financial labiltes at fairvale through prof or loss
Adminstration fee payabls

Audit fes payable

Due to untholders

Citherpayablas

Total liabilities

2021 2020
Lessthané Less thanb
maonths maonths
JPY 000 JPY 000
159,703 -
1.255 1.082
B0 BT
- 774
T55
- 19,063
532 4T
162,150 23043
2021 2020
Lessthan§ Less than &
manths manths
JPY 000 JPY 000
- 4 345
1,255 1,082
15 40
149
505 536
14924 6053
2021 2020
Lessthans Less than G
maonths months
JPY D00 SJPY 000
2519 -
1,255 1.083
150 2438
- GT6
170 4120
731 1.1749
4 825 3 556
2021 2020
Lessthant Less thanb
months months
JPY 000 SJPY 000
- 1.256
1.255 1.083
3 238
1,242 -
505 701
3,008 3.378
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
3. Finanelal risk management [continued)

in Liguidity risk {continued)

AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609

2021 2020
Lessthané Less thanb
muonths manths
AUD AUD
Managemant fea payable 202 214 146 778
Cue to unitholders 191,218 19444
Otherpayables 3182537 1,825 072
Taotal liabilitles 3 ETE 457 1,981 294
ALUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612
2021 2020
Lessthant Less than B
months months
AUD AUD
Managemant fea payable 45,214 32,160
Otherpayablas SEE. 210 470537
Taotal liabilities 613424 507 637
Us Technology 2x Bull Fund
2021 2020
Lezsthané Less thanB
maonths manths
JRY 000 JRY 000
Administration fee payabls B11 470
Audit fes payable 3147 189
Amount due to brokers 17847 170371
Cue to unitholders 33,896 -
Trustes fee payables E 127
Otherpayables 17444 4674
Total liabilities 73,049 173,831
Us Technology 2x Bear Fund
2021 20z0
Lessthang Less than&
maonths manths
JPY 000 JPY 000
Financial iabilibes at fair valus through prof or loss 71484 8359
Adminstration fee payabbes 611 470
Audit fee payable aa1 57
Amaount dus to brokers - 1618
Do b wnithial ders 4932 123,722
Trustae fea payabls - 127
Otherpayablas 4524 1018
Taotal liabilitles TE 003 135 371

The sub-funds manag e their liquidity risk by invesling predominantly in securities that they expectto be able to liquidae

within 1month orless.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
[[:]] Capital risk management

The sub-funds' capital is represented by the units in the sub-funds and shown as nel assels attributable 1o unitholders
on the statement of financial position. In order to achieve the investment objeclives. the sub-funds endeavo urto invest
their capital in accordance with the investment peolicies as oullined in Mote 1, whilst maintaining sufficient liquidity o me &
redemption requests. Such liquidity is augmenled by the holding of liquid investments.

4, Falr value measurement

The sub-funds classify falr value measurements using a falr value hlerarchy thal reflects the significance of the inpus
used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has thefollowing levels:

Level 1- Inputs that reflects unadjusted quoted prices in aclive markets for identical assets orliabiities that the sub-funds
have Ihe ability o access al measurement dale:

Invesiments whose valuas are based on quoled markel prices in active markels, and are lherefore classified wilhin leval
1.

Level 2 - Inputs olher than quoled prices that are observable for the assel orliability either directiyor indinecily, inchuding
inputs In markets thal are nolconsideredio be aclive;

Invesiments that irade in markets that are not considered to be aclive, bul are valued based on quoled markel prices,
dealer gquolations or allernative pricing sources suppored by observable inputs are classified within level 2. As level 2
invesiments include positions that are netiraded in active markels and/or are subject lo transfer restriction s, valuations
may be adjusted lo reflectilliguidity andfornon-tran sferability, which are generally based on available marketinformation.

Lewel 3 - Inputs that are unobservable.

The level In the fair value hierarchy wilhin which the fair value measuremen! |5 calegorised in its enfirety is determined
on the basis ofthe lowestlevel inputihalis significanito the fair value measurement (n its entirely. Forihis purpose.ihe
significance ofan input is assessed againstthe fair value measurement in its entirety. If a fair value measurement uses
observable Inpuls thal require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, thal measurement Is a level 3
measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input 1o the fair value measurement in its entirety requires
Judgmeni, consldering factors specific lo the asset orliabillty.

The determination of what constitutes “observable” requires significant judgmeni by the Managers. The Managers
consider observable dala to be thal markel dala thal is readily available, reqularly distribuled or updated , reliable and
verifiable, netproprielary, and provided by independen! sources that are aclively invelved in the relevant markel.

70
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
4, Falr value measurement |continued)

Thefollowing lable analyses within the falr value hierarchy the sub-funds' fimanclal assets and liabillies measured atfalr
value al year end date:

China 2x Bull Fund

Ag at 30 June Z0Z1
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
JFY D00 JP 00 J P00 JPY 000

Fimancial Azsets
Financial assels at farvalse
o gh proft or loss
Dbt secuntes 431,145 : 231,145
Tatal 231,145 - = 231 145
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabiltes at fair valus
through profit or loss
Dernvatives

- Index swap transachion - 3483 - 34
Total - 3463 3

As at 30 June 2020
Level 1 Lewvel 2 Lewvel 3 Tatal
JPY D00 JPYO00 JPY000 JPY OO0

Financial Assets
Financial assals at farvaiue
through profit orloss
Debt secunties 177,143 - - 177,143
Total 177 143 - - 177 143
Financial Liabilities
Financial labilie s at (& vaha
through profit or loss
Dervatives
- Index swap transaction 11,117 11,1137
Tl - 11,112 = 11112

China 2x Bear Fund

Az at 30 June 2021
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
JPY 00 JPYO00 JPY000 JPYO00

Fimancial Azsets
Finarcial assets at farvahse
through profit orloss
Debt secunbes 58031 - - 58 021
Total S8E.021 - - 58021
Financial Liabllities
Firancial liabilite s at fairvake
throwgh profit or loss
Dwrivatves
- Index swap transaction - 257 - 257
Total - 257 - 57

As at 30 June 2020
Level1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Total
JPY D00 SJPYR00 JPY000 JPY 000

Financial Assets
Financial asssts at farvalue
nrawgh proft or loss
Dbl secwribes 100,084 - - 100, 084
Dwrivatives

- Index swap transachion - 5 152 - 5152
Total 100,084 5,152 - 105,236

71

196/306



PassIM Trust

EDINETOOOO

OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

4.

Falr value measurement |continued)

Gold 2x Bull Fund
Az at 30 June 2021

Financial Assets
Financial assats at farvalue
thirough profit or loss
Debt secunties
Total
Financial Liakilities
Financial liabilibe s at far vake
through profit ar loss
Derivatives

- Index swap transaction
Total

As at 30 June 2020

Financial Assets
Finandcial assets al larvahse
through prafit or loss
Dabt sacunties
Dwrivatives

Index swap transaction
Total

Gold 2x Bear Fund
Az at 30 June 2021

Financial Assets
Financial assals at larvaioe
through prafit arloss
Dwbt secunties
Danvatves

= Inderx swap iransaction
Talal

As at 30 June 2020

Financial Assets
Financal assets at farvahse
through proft orloss
Debt secunties
Total
Fimancial Liabllities
Financial liabilites at far vakes
through profit or loss
Derivatives

- Index swap fransaction
Total

Level1 Level 2 Level3 Total
JEY'000 JBY 000 JPY000 JEY 1000
BOT 422 BOT 422
207 422 . BOT 427
159,703 158,703
159 103 159,703
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
JEY 000 JPY000 JPY000 JEYTO00
251,258 - 251,258
40,600 40,500
251,258 A0 B500 291 858
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JEY 000 JPY000 JPY000 JEY 100
9,403 . 2403
- 2074 2074
[A403 2,074 11477
Level1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Total
JPY 000 JPY000 JPY000 JPYO00
31.326 31,326
31328 - 31,328
4 345 4 345
4345 4 345
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

4.

Falr value measurement |continued)

India 2x Bull Fund
Az at 30 June 2021

Financial Assets
Financial assats at farvalue
thirough profit or loss
Debt secunties
Total
Financial Liakilities
Financial liabilibe s at far vake
through profit ar loss
Derivatives

- Index swap transaction
Total

As at 30 June 2020

Financial Assets
Finandcial assets al larvahse
through prafit or loss
Dabt sacunties
Dwrivatives

Index swap transaction
Total

India 2% Bear Fund
Az at 30 June 2021

Financial Assets
Financial assals at larvaioe
through prafit orloss
Dwbt secunties
Danvatves

= Inderx swap iransaction
Talal

As at 30 June 2020

Financial Assets
Financal assets at farvahse
through proft orloss
Debt secunties
Total
Fimancial Liabllities
Financial liabilites at far vakes
through profit or loss
Derivatives

- Index swap fransaction
Total

Level1 Level 2 Level3 Total
JEY'000 JBY 000 JPY000 JEY 1000
196,228 198,228
195,228 . 198 228
25149 2519
T 2519
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
JEY 000 JPY000 JPY000 JEYTO00
273323 - 273323
T804 7,804
A73.323 1804 231 127
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JEY 000 JPY000 JPY000 JEY 100
3,008 - 3,008
- 3 &
3006 8 3014
Level1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Total
JPY 000 JPY000 JPY000 JPYO00
26.922 26,922
26 923 - 26 92
1,356 1,356
1.356 1,358
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

4.

Falr value measurement |continued)

AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609
Az at 30 June 2021

Financial Assets

Financial assets at farvalue
through profit or lass
Performances linkad note

Total

As at 30 June 2020

Fimancial Azsets

Financial assats at farvalue
through profit of loss
Ferformanca linked note
Total

AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201812
As at 30 June 2021

Financial Azsets

Financial assats at farvaiss
through profit or loss
Performance linkad nate
Tatal

Ag at 30 June 2020

Financial Assets

Financial assals at farvalue
through prafit or loss
Performancea linked note
Total

UE Technology 2x Bull Fund
As at 30 June 2021

Financial Assets
Finandcal assels al farvaise
through proft or loss
DCwbt securities
Carvatives

Index swap iransaction
Tolal

As at 30 June 2020

Financial Azsets
Financal assets at farvahse
thraugh profit or loss
Debt secunties
Denvatives

= |mdex aWap transachion
Total

Level1 Level 2 Level3 Total
AUD ALD ALID ALD
102 880,371 102 880,371
102 BE0 371 102 880 371
Level1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Tatal
ALD ALD ALID AUD
118 851 840 118 851 840
118851, 8340 118 651 840
Level1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Tatal
AUD ALUD ALD AUD
30,431,870 30,431,970
30.431.970 304318970
Leveld Level 2 Lewvel 3 Total
AUD ALD ALD AUD
35 752 186 315 752 188
35752155 35752 186
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Taotal
JPY000 JPY000 JPY'000 JPY 000
1,305,127 - 13051427
- 208045 208 045
1,305,127 208,045 1514 172
Level1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Taotal
JPY 000 JPY000 JPY000 JPYO00
518,941 - 515,941
- 37400 37 400
518,941 7,400 556,341
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

4, Falr value measurement |continued)

Us Technology 2x Bear Fund
Az at 30 June 2021

Level1 Level 2 Level3 Total
JEY'000 JBY 000 JPY 000 JEY D00
Financial Assets
Financial assats at farvalue
through profit or loss
Debt secunties 32235149 - - 332319
Total 322518 : : 331319
Financial Liakilities
Financial liabilibe s at far vake
through profit ar loss
Derivatives
- Index swap transaction - 714584 - 71464
Total - 1484 - 11484
As at 30 June 2020
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY000 JEY 100
Financial Assets
Finandcial assets al larvahse
through prafit or loss
Dabt sacunties 130,620 - - 130,620
Total 130,620 - - 130 620
Financial Liabllities
Financial liabilibe s at fair vakie
throwgh proht or ss
Danvatvies
- Index swap transaction - 2359 - g8 3549
Total : 350 - B350

Invesimenis that are valued based on quoled marke! prices in active markets, such as aclive listed equities and listed
futures conlracts, are classified withinlevel 1. The Sub-Funds do notadjust the quoted prices forthese investmenis.

Investments that irade in markets that are not considered to be aclive but are valued based on quoted market prices,
dealer gquolations or allernalive pricing sources supporied by observable inputs, such as unlisted debt securities and
over-the-counter d erivatives. are classified wilhin level 2.

There were no movements between Level 1, 2 and 3 during the year ended 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020,

The following table analyses, within the fair value hierarchy, the Sub-Funds® assets and liabilfies not measured at fair
value al 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020 but forwhich fair value is disclosed.

fa
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

4.

Falr value measurement |continued)

China 2x Bull Fund
Az at 30 June 2021

Leveli Level2 Level3d Total
JEY'000 JFY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000
Assets
Current aszets
Interast ecanable 3 73
Due from unitholders 3ag 305
Managemant lea rebaterecevable 3183 3183
Otherrecervables and prepaymant - B4 324
Cash and cash equivalents 240 243 - 209 298
Total 20 393 4475 33771
Liabilities
Current [labllties
DCue to unithaldars a7 a7
Accrued exXpensas 1 685 BES
Total 1.782 782
China 2x Bull Fund
As at 30 June 2020
Level1 Level2 Levelld Total
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000
Assets
Current assets
Interest recenable 32 3k
Cuie from untholders . 441 441
Managemant fed nababa racanabla . B33 B33
Otherrecevables and prepaymsnt - Tig T18
Cash and cash equivalants 30.947 - 30.947
Total 20 Q47 1 874 13 771
Liabilities
Current llakilities
Accrued expensas 2.951 2,951
Total <8581 2951
China 2x Bear Fund
As at 30 June 2021
Level1 Level2 Levelld Total
JPY 000 JPY D00 JPY 000 JPY 000
Assets
Current agzels
Interest ecenabie 18 1%
Amount dug from Drokers 1 1
Due from unitholders 299 298
Management fes rebate recevable 3147 3,447
Otherrecevables and prepayment . 1454 1,454
Cash and cash equivalents 34,853 - 314,853
Taotal 34.853 48189 39772
Liabilities
Current liabllities
Accrred expensas 1,878 1,878
Total 1878 1,878
76
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

4, Falr value measurement |continued)

China 2x Bear Fund
Az at 30 June 2020

Leveli Level2 Level3d Total
JEY'000 JFY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000
Assets
Current aszets
Imterast ecanable - 1 - 17
Amount due from brokers - 283 - 283
Managemant led rebalaracanable . BT . 367
Otherrecervables and prepaymant - 1.343 - 1,343
Cash and cash equivalents 67 455 - - 6T 455
Tatal BT 455 2010 - B0 465
Liabilities
Current [labllties
Due to unitholdars - 14,032 - 14 032
Accrued exXpensas - 2. 783 - 2783
Taotal - 16615 - 16.815
Gold 2x Bull Fund
As at 30 June 2021
Level1 Level2 Levelld Total
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000
Assets
Current assets
Imterast recanabile - 247 - 247
Dus from untholders . 433 L 493
Managemant fed nabalba racapabla . 2778 . 2778
Otherrecevables and prepayment - 1,113 - 1.113
Cash and cash equivalents 329457 - 329457
Total 370 457 FGER] F 334 DER
Liabilities
Current llakilities
Accrued expensas - 2447 - 2447
Tatal - 2447 2.4
Gold 2x Bull Fund
As at 30 June 2020
Level1 Level2 Levelld Total
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000 Py 000
Assets
Current agzels
Interest recenabls d 48 5 a8
Ampunt due frorm brokers . 1435 : 1435
Cua from unitholders . 9804 . 9,804
Otherrecenvables and prepaymant - 1.047 - 1.017
Cashand cash equivalants 202,940 - - 203 940
Tatal 202.940 12 304 - 216 244
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Amount due to brokers - 755 - 155
Due to unitholders - 19063 - 19,063
Accrued expenses - 3,225 - 3,225
Tatal . 23 042 - 23,043
77
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

4, Falr value measurement |continued)
Gold 2x Bear Fund
Az at 30 June 2021
Leveli Level2 Level3d Total
JEY'000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000
Assets
Current aszets
Imterast ecanable 3 3
Management fes rebate recevable 2.236 2,136
Ctherrecenablos and prepayment . 1.307 1,307
Cash and cash equivalants 2.358 - 2 358
Tetal 2,358 3,545 5,804
Liabilities
Current |labllites
Amount due to brokers 149 149
Accrped expansas 1.7756 1,775
Tatal 1924 1,924
Gold 2x Bear Fund
Az at 30 June 2020
Leveli Level2 Level3d Total
JPY000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000
Assets
Current aszets
Imterast mcanable 5 &
Amount due from brokers 408 408
Dus from untholders . 4718 4,728
Managemant fed nababa racanabla . 484 484
Otherrecevables and prepaymsnt - 1,154 1,194
Cash and cash equivalants 12.918 - 12918
Total 12 918 B E1G 18 7327
Liabilities
Current llakilities
Accrued expensas 1.708 1,708
Tatal 1.708 1,708
India 2x Bull Fund
As at 30 June 2021
Level1 Level2 Levelld Total
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000 Py 000
Assets
Current agzels
Imtarast recanable 63 64
Management fes rebaterecenable 3.257 3,257
Oiherracanablas and prepaymant . 38T 387
Cash and cash equivalents 85.531 - 85,531
Taotal 85531 3 107 #9238
Liabillties
Current liabilities
Due to unitholders 170 ]
Accrued expenseas 2,136 2,136
Tatal <. 208 2.306
[
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

4, Falr value measurement |continued)

India 2x Bull Fund
Az at 30 June 2020

Leveli Level2 Level3d Total
JEY'000 JFY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000
Assets
Current aszets
Imterast ecanable - 10 - T
Amount due from brokers - 13 - 73
Dué from untholders . 18816 L 18,816
Managemant fes rebateracenable - 23 - |
Otherrecevables and prepaymsant - GES - BES
Cash and cash equivalants 112.902 - - 112,902
Taotal 112,902 19899 - 132,757
Liabllities
Current liabilities
Amount dus to brokers - G676 - BTE
Due to unitholders - 4120 - 4 120
Accred 8xpensss - 4 TE0 - 4 TEQ
Total - 9,356 - 4,500
India 2x Bear Fund
As at 30 Jurne 2021
Level1 Level2 Levelld Total
JRY000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000
Assets
Current assets
ISt e canablie . 1 . 1
Amount dua from brokers - 1001 - 1,001
Cue from unitholders - 5 | - k3 |
Managemant fes rebaterecevable - 1.383 . 1,383
Otherrecevablas and prapaynmsnt - 1,430 . 1,280
Cash and cash équivalants BO7 : : g07
Tatal BO7 3.706 - 4,513
Liabilites
Current |labliities
Cue to unitholders . 1.242 - 1,242
Accrued expensas - 1.764 - 1,764
Total - 3,005 - 3,006
Indla 2x Bear Fund
Ag at 30 June 2020
Leveli Level2 Level3 Total
JPY 000 JPY D00 JPY 000 JPY 000
Assets
Current aszets
Intarest recenable . 5 - 5
Amount dua from brokears - 119 - 114
Cue from unitholders . 3322 3322
Managemant fee rebabercanvablo 5 aig = 18
Otherrecevables and prepayment - 1177 - 1477
Cash and cash equivalants 4 9&7 - - 9,887
Total 9887 o541 u 15578
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accrued expensas - 2022 - 2,022
Total - 2022 - 2.02%
79
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

4, Falr value measurement [continued)

AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609
Az at 30 June 2021

Leveli Level2 Level3d Total
ALID ALD AUD AUD
Assets
Current aszets
Imterast ecanable - 184 845 - 184 245
Amount due from brokers - 191,583 - 191,583
Cthérrgcanvablis and pripayment . 2917 043 . 2017043
Cash and cash aquivalants 93,865 - - 93 865
Tetal 93,865 2883471 - 2087336
Liabilities
Current |labllities
Cue to unitholders - 191,216 - 191,116
Ancrred expensss - 2,384 751 - 2,384 751
Tatal . 2.575 967 - 2575887
AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609
Az at 30 June 2020
Leveli Level2 Level3d Total
ALD AUD AUD AUD
Assets
Current aszets
Interest recenable - (566] - [S6E)
Amount dus from brokers - 149 450 - 19,490
Qtherrecevablas and prepayment . 2618710 2618,710
Cash and cash équivalants 229,698 : - 229 698
Tetal FFENGET 2637 634 - 2 E6T 332
Liabilities
Current |labllities
Cue to unitholders - 19,444 - 19,444
Accrued expensas - 1,971 850 - 1,971,850
Taotal a 1,991,204 . 1,991,284
AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612
A= at 30 June 2021
Level 1 Level2 Level3 Tatal
AUD AUD AUD AUD
Assets
Current aszets
Interast ecanable - 17 - 817
Othermecenvables and prapaymant - B9 T00 - 679,700
Cash and cash égquivalants 62,931 - - 62,951
Tetal 28951 BE0.517 - 45 468
Liabilltes
Current |abllities
Accnped expenses - B13 424 Bi1i424
Tatal - 613424 613424
80
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

4, Falr value measurement |continued)

AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612
Az at 30 June 2020

Leveli Level2 Level3d Total
ALID ALD AUD AUD
Assets
Current aszets
Imterast recanable - (8497 - (BT
Otherrecenvables and prepayment - 719688 - 719,658
Cash and cash équivalants 55533 : : 35 233
Tatal 55 533 718 741 - 774 324
Liabillties
Current [lablities
Acciued eXpenseas - 502,697 - 502,697
Tatal - 202697 - 202,697
US Technology 2x Bull Fund
As at 30 June 2021
Level1 Level2 Level3d Total
JPY000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000
Assels
Current assets
Intarast canable - 289 - 189
Amount due from brokers - 3,636 - 3,836
Due from untholders - 163049 - 163,049
Management fes rebate e oevable - 1,323 - 1323
Otherraecanablas @nd prepayment . 241 . 41
Cash and cash équivalents 115,894 . - 115,804
Tetal 115 8494 169,038 - 284 932
Liabilities
Current |labllities
Amount dus te brokers - 17847 - 17,847
Due to unitholdars - 338466 - 33 8068
Accrued expensas - 21256 - 21,256
Tatal - T3.049 - 13,043
Us Technology 2x Bull Fund
Az at 30 June 2020
Level 1 Level2 Levelld Total
JPY'000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000
Assets
Current agzels
Interest mcanable - 105 - 105
Amount dus from brokers - G577 - 6577
Due from untholdars - 314320 - 114 320
Managemeant fee rebate racevable - Gas - 585
Cash and cash equivalents 22461 - 224 621
Tatal 224 621 321687 - S46 308
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Amount due te brokers - 170371 - 170,371
Accrued exXpensss - 5460 - 5 460
Total - 175,631 - 175,831
a1

206/306



PassIM Trust

EDINETOOOO

OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

4.

Falr value measurement |continued)

Us Technology 2x Bear Fund
Az at 30 June 2021

Assets

Current assets

Interest meanable

Amount due from brokers

Dué from untholders

Managemant fes rebateracenable
Otherrecenables and prepaymsnt
Cash and cash equivalents

Total

Liabllities

Current liakilties
Cue to unitholders
Accrued eXpensas

Taotal

Us Technology 2x BearFund
Az at 30 June 2020

Agzets

Current asselts

Intarest mcanabie

Amount dud rom brokars

Cue from wnitholders

Wamna Jema nt fee rebaterecevable
Cash and cash equivalants

Total

Liabilities

Current liabilities
Amaount dus to brokers
Cue to unitholders
Accrnped eXpenses
Taotal

The assets and liakilities included In the above table are carred at amortised cost; thelrcarrying values are areasonable

approximalion of fair valua.

Amounts due from brokers and other recelvables include the contractual amounts for setllement of trades and other
obligations due to the sub-funds. Amounts dueto brokers and accrualsrepresentthe conraclual amounts and o bigaions

Leveli Level2 Level3d Total
JEY'000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000
53 53
313 1,313
99 99
2320 2,320
535 535
20,316 - 220,316
20,316 4 320 224 536
4432 497
6026 5026
6518 6,515

Leveli Level2 Levelld Total
JPYO00 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000
. 19 19

. 20% 32,027
6563 6,563
- Tan 7a0
102175 - 103 175
102175 39,393 142,574
1618 1,618
123 722 123,722
1672 1,672
127012 127,012

due by the sub-funds for settlemenl of trades and expenses,
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

5.

Finanelal Instruments by category
Financial assels

Apart from investmenis disclesed inthe slatement of financial position which are classified as al fair value through proft
orloss. all other fimancial assels as disclosed in the slatement of financial posiion, ine luding other receivables, amounis
due from brokers, cash and cash Hqulval ents and duefrom unitholders, arec Hlég-ﬂ rised as “other financial receivablas”.

Financlal llakllties

Apart fram investmenis disclesed inthe slatement offinancial poslion which are classified as fair value through p rofi or
loss. all financial liabilities as disclosed in the slatement of financial position, including adminisiration fee payable,
managemenl fee payable. trusiee fee payable, audit fee payable. amounts due fo brokers. other payables and due o
unitholders are calegorised as “olher financial llabiities”.

Derivative financial instruments by category

The sub-funds hold over-the-counter ("OTC") financial derivative instruments. Each sub-fund records its derivative
activities on amark-to-marked basis.For OTC contracts. the sub-funds enter into master nelling agreemenis with ifs
counterparlies. Therefore, assels represent the sub-funds' unrealised gain less unrealised losses for OTC conlraclsin
which the sub-funds have a master nelling agreement. Similarly, liabilities represent net amounts owned lo
counterparlies on OTC contracts.

Whilethe prudeniuse ofsuch derivatives can be beneficial, derivatives also involve risks different from. and In cerain
cases, grealerthan, the risks presented by more iradilional invesimenis. Returns which are derived from a swap
fransaclion may be more volatile than relums which are derived from the asset underlying the swap transaction.

As of 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020, the sub-funds sftatement of financial positioninduded the following financial
derivative instruments;

30 June 2021 30 June 2020

Motional value Fair value Motional value Fair value

JPY'000 JEY000
Chana 2x Eull Fund 501,830,000 [3.463) 473,560,000 {11,112)
Chng 2 EearFund 16T 490,000 (257 445,790,000 5,132
Gald 2x Bull Fund B26,620,000 (158,703) 374 680,000 40,600
Gald 2¢ Baar Fund 37,700,000 2.074 107,350,000 4.345)
India 2x Bul Fund 276,820,000 [2.519) 798,250,000 7.804
India 25 BearFund 20,420,000 g 73,260,000 {1.356)
U5 Technalogy 2x Bull Fund 541,050,000 209,045 598,790,000 37 400
U5 Technology Ix BearFund 1,845 670,000 71.484) 210,310,000 (&8,359)

The sub-funds have creditrisk from O TC conlracts when bwo condilions are present
iy 1he OTC contracls have unrealized gains. netofany collateral and
{iiy the counterparty io the contract defaults,

The disclosures sel oul in the tables below include financial assets and financial liabililies that are subject lo an
enfarceable master netting agreement,

The ISDA and =imilar master netting agresmenis enterad by the sub-funds with 1 counlerparties de not meel the criteria
for offselling in the statement of financial position. This is because they create a right of o fiset of recognised amounis
that is enforceable only fallowing an evenl of d efaull, insolvency or bankruptcy or the sub-funds or counterparies donot
inlend to setile on a nel basis or lo realiselhe assels and setlle The liabilities simultan eously.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

6. Derivative financial instruments by category [continued)

Financial asseals which are subject lo enforceable master nelling agreements or similar agreements for the year anded
30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020 are defalled in the followingtable:

China 2x Bull Fund

30 June 2021
Mot amounts of
Gross amounts of financial
recognised liabilities
Gross amounts financial assets presentedinthe
of recognised set-off in the statementol  Related amounts not set-off
financial statéementof financial in the statement of financial
liabilities financial position position position Het amount
Financial Security
Instrumenis callateral
JEYT00 SJEYO00 SJEY D00 JEY 000 JEY000 JPYO00
Index swap ransaction {3.463) [3.463) [3.4G3)
Tolal [EELEN - ERLEN - EELED
30 June 2020
Met amounts of
Gross amounts of financial
recagnised liabilities
Gross amounts financial assets presented inthe
af recognized set-off in the staternentof  Related amounts not set-off
financial statement of financial i the statement of financial
liabilities  financial position pesition pesition Het amount
Financial Security
Instrument collateral
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY000 JPY000
Index swap transaction [11,112) - {11,112} - 11,112 -
Total [EEPEE ] - [EERSEF] - 11113 -
China 2x BearFund
30 June 2021
Met amounts of
Gross amounts of financial
recognised liabilities
Gross amounts financial assets presented inthe
of recognised set-off in the statementof Related amounts not set-off
financial statement of financial in the statement of inancial
liabllities financial poziton position positon et amount
Fimancial Securty
Instrume nts collateral
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY000 SJPY000
Index swap transaction [257] - - - 257 -
Tatal [257) - - - 257 -
30 June 2020
Met amounts of
Gross amounts of financial
recegnised liabilities
Gross amounts financial liabilities presented in the
of recognised set-off in the statementof Related amounts not set-off
financial statement of financial in the statement of financial
assets financial position pesition pesition Het amount
Financial Security
Instrument collateral
JPY 00 SJEYO00 SJEY 000 SJPY D00 JPYO00 JPYO0D
Irida Swap Wransacon 5 152 - 5 152 - 5152
Tatal 5,152 5,152 5.152
a4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

6. Derivative financial instruments by category [continued)
Gold 2x Bull Fund
30 June 2021
MNet amounts of
Gross amounts of financial
recognised liabilities
Gross amounts financial assets presentedinthe
of recognised  set-offin the statementof  Related amounts not setolf
financial statement of financial in the statement of financial
liabilities financial position position position Net amount
Financial Security
Instruments collateral
JRY 000 JEY 000 JREY 000 JEY 000 JEY000 JRY000
Indax swap transaction (159, 703 (158,703 ) 145410 (14 293)
Total (RN {198, (03] 142,410 (14,293]
30 June 2020
Met amounts of
Gross amounts of financial
recognised liabilities
Gross amounts financial liakilities presented in the
of recognised set-off in the statementof Related amounts not set-off
financial statement of financial in thie statement of financial
asgets financial poziton peosition positon et amount
Fimancial Securty
Instrument collateral
JPYT00 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY000 SJPY000
Index swap transaction 40 800 40 600 40 GO0
Total 40,600 40,600 40,600
Gold 2x Bear Fund
30 June 2021
Gross amounts of Met amounts of
recegnised financial assets
Gross amounts financial asgets presented inthe
of recognised set-off in the statementof Related amounts not set-off
financial statementof financial im the statement of financial
assets financial position pesition position Het amount
Financial Security
Instruments collateral
JRYD00 JEY 000 JEY 000 JEY D00 JRY000 JRY000
Index swap transachion 2,074 2,074 {1.834] 240
Total 2074 2074 [1.534] 240
30 Jun+ 2020
Mot amounts of
Gross amounts of financial
recognised liabilities
Gross amounts financial assets presentedinthe
of recognised sot-off in the staternentof  Related amounts not set-off
financial statementof financial in the statement of financial
liabilities financial position pesition poesition Net amount
Financial Security
Instrument collateral
JPY D00 SJPY 000 JPY 000 JPY D00 JPY000 SJPYO00
Index swap ransacion 2 345] (4 345]) 3553 (7421
Total {2,345) [4.585] 3093 (Fad)
85
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

6. Derivative financial instruments by category (continued)
India 2x Bull Fund
30 June 2021
MNet amounts of
Gross amounts of financial
recognised liabilities
Gross amounts financial assets presentedinthe
of recognised set-off in the staternent of Related amouwnts not set-off
financial statement of financial in the statement of financial
liabilities financial position position position Net amount
Financial Security
Instruments collateral
JEY 000 JEY 000 JEY 000 JEY 000 JEY000 JRY000
Index swap transaction {2.519) {2.519) 2519
Taolal (£219) FREEN 19
30 June 2020
Met amounts of
Gross amounts of financial
recognised liabilities
Gross amounts financial liakilities presented in the
of recognised set-off in the statementof Related amounts not set-off
financial statement of financial in thie statement of financial
asgets financial poziton peosition positon et amount
Fimancial Securty
Instrument collateral
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY000 SJPYO00
Index swap transaction 7 804 7. 804 7 804
Tatal 7.504 7504 7604
India 2x Bear Fund
30 June 2021
Gross amounts of Met amounts of
recegnised financial assets
Gross amounts financial asgets presented inthe
of recognised set-off in the statementof Related amounts not set-off
financial statement of financial i the statement of financial
assets financial position pesition position Het amount
Financial Security
Instruments collateral
JPEY 000 JRY 000 JPY 000 JEY 000 JPY000 JRY000
Index swap transachion B g g
Tatal ] [:] ]
30 June 2020
et amounts of
Gross amounts of financial
recognised liabilities
Gross amounts financial assets presentedinthe
of recognised sot-off in the staternentof  Related amounts not set-off
financial statement of financial in the statement of financial
liabilities financial position pesition poesition Net amount
Financial Security
Instrument collateral
JPY 000 SJEYO00 SJPY 000 JEY D00 JPY000 SPYI00
Index swap ransacion {1 356) {1.356]) 1301 {55])
Total {1.396) (1.536) 1,301 {23]
a6
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

6. Derivative financial instruments by category [continued)
S Technology 2x Bull Fund
30 June 2021
Gross amounts of MNet amounts of
recognised financial assels
Gross amounts financial assets presentedin the
of recognised set-off in the statementof  Related amounts not set-off
financial statement of financial in the statement of financial
assels financial position position position Net amount
Financial Security
Instruments collateral
JPY D00 SJPY 000 JPY 000 JPY D00 JPY000 JPYD00
Imdex swap trensaction 209,045 - 209045 - (142 987 66058
Total 209,045 203045 - {142 55V GE USE
30 June 2020
Mot amounts of
Gross amounts of financial
recagnised liabilities
Gross amounts financial llabllides presented inthe
of recognised set-off in the statementof Related amounts not set-off
financial statement of financial in the statement of financial
asgets financial position pesition position Het amount
Financial Securty
Instrument collateral
JEY D00 JEY 000 JEY 000 JEY 000 JEY'000 JPY000
Index swap ransaction 37,400 - 37,400 - (11483 25917
Total 27 400 - 27,400 - (11.483] 25817
Us Technology 2x Bear Fund
30 June 2021
Mot amounts of
Gross amounts of financial
recegnised liabilities
Gross amounts financial asgets presented inthe
of recognised set-off in the statementof Related amounts not set-off
financial statementof financial im the statement of financial
liabilities financial position pesition position Het amount
Financial Security
Instruments collateral
JRYD00 JEY 000 JEY 000 JEY D00 JRY000 JRY000
Index swap transachion (T1,484) - (71,4584) - 56,748 {14,736)
Total [71.484) - [F1.484) - EEREE [RERELT]
30 Jun+ 2020
Mot amounts of
Gross amounts of financial
recognised liabilities
Gross amounts financial assets presentedinthe
of recognised sot-off in the staternentof  Related amounts not set-off
financial statementof financial in the statement of financial
liabilities financial position pesition poesition Net amount
Financial Security
Instrument collateral
JPY D00 SJPY 000 SJPY 000 JPY D00 JPY000 SJPYO00
Index swap ransacion {8.3549) - (8.359) - 70549 {1,300
Total (&.394) EEEEN - L] (1.500)
87
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

7. Met gains/{losses) an fMinancial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
China 2x Bull Fund
Yearended30 YWearended30
June 2021 June 2020
JPY 000 JPY 000
Net gains/{losses)on financial assets and liabilites at fair value through profit or loss:
Realised loss oninvestments {14} [CR]
Realised ganifiess)on financial dervatives 17,196 (71.209)
Unrealised (logs Ygain onnvestments (16] a0
Unrealesed gainfloss) on inancial denvatvas 76410 (46 687)
24 515 {117.857]
China 2x Bear Fund
Yearended30 YWearended30
June 2021 June 2020
JPY 000 JEY 000
MNet gainsilosses)on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss;
Realised koss on investments {12} [l 3]
Realisad (loss ¥gain on finandal denvatives (20_507) 33,3352
Unrealsed (loss ¥gain on nvestmants {33) of
Unreealz=ad (loss Mgain on inandal denvalves {5.408) 33,030
[25.960) 16,458
Gold 2x Bull Fund
Yearended30 Yearended30
June 2021 June 2020
JPY 000 JPY 000
it gains/losses)on financial assets and liabilities atfair value through prefit or loss:
Raoalised ks oninvestmants {27} 123)
Realisad gain on fnancal denvatives E7.302 21,003
Unrealsed loss on invesiments {1.087) {74)
Unrealsed (loss ¥gain on inancial denvatves (199.931) 23671
T3 =¥
Gold 2x Bear Fund
Yearended30 Yearended30
June 2021 June 2020
JPY 000 JPY 000
Met gainsilosses)on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss;
Realised ks oninvestmants (9] 4]
Raalised ganiikss) on inancal denvatives 4,440 [23.529)
Unrealised gainfloss)on nvestments 16 {23)
Unrealsed gaindloss)on inancial denvatives 5419 (3131
10, BGE [26. 677
India 2x Bull Fund
Yearended30 Yearended30
June 2021 June 2020
JPY 000 JEY 000
Met gaine/{logses)on financial azsets and liabilities at fair value threugh profit or logs:
Realised k55 on investments (33) {30)
Roalised gamifoss) on inanaal denvativas 185,056 {306.070)
Unrealisad gain on investments 43 46
Unrealised (loss ¥gain on financal denvatives {10 334) 40414
164,742 (6% 640)
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

India Zx Bear Fund
Yearended30 Yearended30
June 2021 June 2020
SJEY 00D SJEY 000

Met gains/{losses)on financial assets and labilities at fair v alue through profit or loss:
Realised koss oninvestments (7] {15)
Realised (lass Ygan on financial dermatives (27.380) 79,805
Unrealsed gain on investments 20 56
Unrealesad gainioss)on inancisl donvalves 1365 {5,868

[25.982) 73,878

ALID Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609
Yearended30 Yearended30

June 2021 June 2020
AUD AUD
Met gains/{losses)on financial assels and liabilities at fair v alue through profit or loss:
Raalised gam on investments 1,158,500 204,736
Unrealesed gain on investmants 1,776,331 62,527
2 055,631 267 263

AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612
Yearended30 Yearended30

June 2021 June 2020
ALID ALID
Net gains/{losses)on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Realised gain on investments 1,053,013 193,150
Unrealised gainfloss)oninvestments 5938 063 {335,319
1991076 ar 169)

s Technology 2x Bull Fund
Yearended30 Yearended30

June 2021 June 2020
JPY 000 JEY 000

MNet gains/{losses)on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through prafit or loss:
Realisad kass on invastmants [2.312) [128)
Raalised gainon fnandaal denvatives 1,368,144 208,420
Unrealsad loss aninvestiments (813) [148)
Unrealead gain on financal demvatives 174,642 37400

1336 661 2% D4

Us Technology 2x Bear Fund
Yearended30 Yearended 30

June 2021 June 2020
JPY 000 JPEY 000
Net gains/{losses)on financial aszets and Habllities at falr v alue through profit or lozss:
Realised lass oninvestments (958] (48]
Realised lass on hnancal demvatives (226.492) (42.808)
Unrealrsed loss on investiments [157) {25)
Unrealised loss on financial denvatives {63 136) {8 359
[EET Y] [51.238)

a9
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

8. Redeemable participating units in issue

The sub-funds issue redeemable parlicipaling unils, which areredesmable al the unithelder's oplion and are classified
as equity In accordance with |1AS 32. Should the redeemable parlicipating units terms or conditions change such that
they do notcomply with the strict criteria contained in 1AS 32 the redeemable pariicip aling unils would be reclassified o
a financial liability from the date the inslrumentceases o meel ihe criteria. The financial liabilty would be measured at
the instrumenf’s fair value al the date of reclassification. Redeemable paricipating units are carried al the redemption
amount ihat is payable at the date ofthe statement of financial postion ifthe unitholders exercise their righis to put the
unlits back to the sub-funds for cash al the relevant dealing day.

Redeemable pariicipating units are Issued and redeemed at the option of the unithoiders at prices based on the
sub-fund's netassel value per unif at the lime ofissue orredemplion,

The sub-funds”oneclass of units in issue meel the conditions oflAS 32 and are classified as equily.

The sub-funds' net asset value per unil IS calculaled by dividing the nel assels attribulable 1o holders of each class of
redeemable participaling units with the tolal number of oulstanding red eemable parlicipating units for each respecive
class. In accordance with the provisions of the sub-fund's regulalions, iInvestment postions are valued based on lhe
quoted markel prices for the purpose of defermining the nef asset value per unit for subscriptions and redemplons.
Unithalders may redeem theirunits on any dealing day whichis daily inwhole orin par.

In addition, in accordance with the explanatory memorandum, the preliminary expenses incurred in the formation of the
Trust and the sub-funds are borne by the sub-fund. Such expenses will be paid out of the assels of the sub-funds and
amartised over 36 months or as determined by the Manager. However, as staled in Mole 2i§), the accounling policy of
the sub-funds for the purpose of compliance with IFRS and for reporting purpose isto expense the expenses incurmed in
the farmation ofihe Sub-Funds in the period inwhichihey arose.

Each sub-fund’s nel assels value represents an equity in the stalement of financial position, carried at the redemption
amount that would be payable at the stalement offinancial posiion dale iffhe uniiholders exercised the rightlo redeem
the wnits.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

8. Redeemable participating units inissue [continued)

Forlhe purpose of these financial stalements, the following are required to be recognised in the calculalion of he
sub-funds’' nel assels value:

As al 30 June 2021 the sub-fund, China2x Bear Fund has a subscription ofindex swap which is not included inthe
net asset value for subscriptions and redemptions, Forthe purpose ofthesefinancialstatements, they are required o
be recognised inthe calculationofthe sub-fund's net azsels value. Thereis no difference to the sub-fund's net assels
value.

As al 30 June 2021 the sub-fund, India 2x Bear Fund has a redemplion of index swap and a sale of 1 milllon 0.1%
Japan Govemment Bond due 20 September 2021, which arenolincludedin the net asset value for subscriptions and
redemptlons. For the purpese of lhese financ al slatemenis, they are required 1o be recognised In the calculaton of
the sub-fund's nel assets value.

As at 30 June 2021 and 2020, the sub-funds, US Technology 2x Bull Fund and US Technology 2x Bear Fund,
preliminary expenses are amorised over a period of 36 monihsfrom date of launchwhile for purpose ofthese financia
slatements these preliminary expenses areexpensed inlhe period when lhey areincurred.

As at 30 June 2021 the sub-fund.  ALID Target Malurity Bond Fund 201609 has a sale of 15,000 of Aries Finance Lid
0% due 26 Seplember 2022, which is notincluded In the net asset value for subscriplions and redemptions. Forhe
purposeofthese financialstalemenis, they are required 1o be recognised inthe calculation ofthe sub-fund'snet asses
value. There s no difference fo ihe sub-fund's net assels value.

As al 30 June 2020 the sub-fund, Gold 2% Bull Fund have a subscriplion ofindex swap which is not induded in the nel
assel value for subscriplions and redemplions. Forthe purpose ofthesefinancial statements, they are required to be
recognised in the calculalion of the sub-fund's nel assels value. There is no diference to the sub-fund's net assels
value.

As at 20 June 2020 the sub-fund, China 2x Bear Fund have a redemption ofindex swap which is not included in he
net aszet value for subscriptions and redemptions, Forthe purpese ofthesefinancial statemenis, they are required fo
be recognised in the caleulation ofthe sub-fund's net assels value.

A reconcllistion ofthe equity per the financial statements and the trading net asset value forizsuing redeeming unis

al thefinancial year end is prepared below:
30 June 2021 30 June 2020

China 2x Bull Fund JPY000 JPY000
Equiy as perstatement of inancal postion 258 673 195,851
Trading net assetvalue (forsubscraptions and redemplions purposes) 258 673 195 451

30 June 2021 30 June 2020

China 2x Bear Fund JPYO00 JPYO00

Equiy as perstatemant of inancal position 95 658 157 886

Realisad loss due to backdated trade - 45

Tradingnet asselvalue (for subscriptions and redemplions purposas) 45 BoH 157 931
=1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

8.

Redeemable participating units in issue (continued)

Gold 2x Bull Fund

Equity as parstatement of financial poston

Trading net assel valus [for subsonplions and rdempleans purpoesas )
Gold 2x Bear Fund

Equity as perstatement of financial postson

Trading net assat value (for subsanptions and redemplions purposas)
India 2x Bull Fund

Equity as perstatement of inancial postion

Trading net assat vakse [forsubsanptions and nedamplions purposes )
India 2% BearFund

Equity as perstatament of inancial posiion

Realisad lass dus to backdated trade
Trading net asset value (for subscriptions and redemptions purposas )

AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609

Equity as perstatemeant of financial position

Tradimg net assel vabee (fersubsciptions and redempticns purposss )
ALD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201812

Equity as perstatement of financial posiion

Trading net assat value (for subsceiptions and redemptions purposss)
US Technolegy 2x Bull Fund

Eguity as perstatement of fimancial posion

Establishment cost expensad off

Trading net asset value (forsubsoptions and redemplions purpeses )
US Technolegy 2x Bear Fund

Equity a5 perstatemant of inancial postion

Estatdishment cost expensad off
Trading nat assat valee [far subseriptions and radampleors purposas)

30 June 2021 30 June 2020
JPY000 JPY'000
Q79 360 485059
78 360 455 058
30 June 2021 30 June 2020
JEYT00 SPY'000
15457 45 010
15457 45010
30 June 2021 30 June 2020
JEY000 JPY'000
282 641 a04 323
JE2 621 404 328
30 June 2021 30 June 2020
SJEYT00 SPY'000D
.51 38072
2 =
4 523 34072
30 June 2021 30 June 2020
ALID AUD
103,291,740 119,727 876
103,291,740 119,727 818
30 June 2021 30 June 2020
AL ALID
30562 0% S6 023813
ENFIE 36 028,818
30 June 2021 30 June 2020
JPY000 JPY000
1,726,055 a26.818
2 0ED 3 551
1,028,135 230,369
30 June 2021 30 June 2020
SJPY000 SJPY'000
468 953 137823
b L] 214
A00.048 TSE_ 537
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

Redeemable participating units in issue (continued)

The sub-funds, China 2x Bull Fund , China 2x Bear Fund, Geld Zx Bull Fund, Gold 2x Bear Fund. Indla 2x Bull Fun d, Indla
2x Bear Fund, AUD Target Malurity Bond Fund 201609, AUD Target Malurity Bond Fund 201612, US Technolegy 2«
Bull Fund and US Technology2x Bear Fund have one class of units as al 20 June 2021 and 20 June 2020 respectively.

Class C

humberofunitsin issue at the beginning of vear
Units issued

Units redeemed

Mumbarolumitsim issue al he and of wiar
Edquity- JPY 000

MNet assel valoe per unit - JPY'000

Class C

Mumberatumibsim issud at the baginnmg of year
Units ssued

Units rmdeemead

Numberofunits inissue at the end of wear
Equity- JFY 000

Net assef value perunit - JPY 000

Class C

Mumberofumits im issua at the begrnmg of vaar
Units msudd

Unils medaamad

Numberofunitsin issua at the end of vear
Equity- JFY 000

Net asssef value perunit - FY'000

Class B

Numberofunitsin issue at the beginning of yaar
Linits msued

Unils redaamad

MNumberofunitsin issue at the end of vear
Equity- ALID

Met asset value perunit - ALD

Class C

MNumberofunitsin issue at the beginning of yaar
Linits issued

Units redesmad

Humberofumnits in issue at the end of year
Equity= JPY 00

Nat assal value per wnil - JPYTOD

China 2x Bull Fund China 2x Bear Fund
201 2020 2021 2020
22,210 - 16,540 -
59,000 29,330 18680 18.300
(54 440) (7120} {19,370} {1.760]
28,770 22,210 15850 16,940
250873 195,851 095,658 157 886
9,700 B.813 5035 o546
Gold 2x Bull Fund Gold 2x Bear Fund
2021 2020 2021 2020
44 00 - 5470 .
175 440 54,150 24 640 T.380
{123 450 (0450} {28 050 [1.910})
99690 44 700 2060 5470
975 360 RN 15 457 45 010
09 8234 10 851 T 503 B 228
India 2x Bull Fund India 2x Bear Fund
2021 2020 2021 2020
47,220 - 4460 ;
51,440 T£.940 13.250 8,230
[B2.040) 131,720} 116,280) [3.830)
16,500 47,220 1420 2450
282 841 404 323 4851 38072
17 008 B 5B3 3184 B.761
ALD Target Maturity Bond ALUD Target Maturity Bond
Fund 201609 Fund 201612
2021 2020 2021 2020
1,158 400 1,194,130 324 430 337 B30
(181,100} {35,730} (63.860) {13,200}
DT 1,158 400 RG] 344 .355
103,291,740 119,727 878 30,562,074 36023813
105 54 103 36 117,24 111 04

U5 Technology 2:x Bull Fund

U5 Technology 2x Bear Fund

2021 2020 2021 2020
B0,420 - 21,490 -
373,850 135.210 431,440 &7T.330
378,380 74 790 280 580 55 840
3{5@3 b‘ﬁ_a’}ﬁ 197, 214
1,726,055 926,818 468 953 137,823
A0 584 15.340 2438 5413
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
9. Management fes

The Manager is entitled to recelve a management fee for each sub-fund as disclosed Inthe Prospectus or & Supplement
from fime to lime.

The Marnager may valunlarily undertake to reduce or walve itz management fee lo reduce expenses of a sub-fund to the
extent thal such expenses exceed such lower expense limilalion as the Manager may voluntarily declare to be effective.
The Manager may terminate or modify this voluntary undedaking al any time at ils sole discrelion uponnotice in wrifing
to thetrustes and unitholders.

The Manager has agreed lo reimburse expenses ifihe lotal expenses including adminisiralionfes, custody fee, Irustes
fee, registrar fee, financial reporting fee and CIMA registration annual fee exceed 1.5% of MAY for China 2x Bull Fund,
China 2x Bear Fund,Gold 2x Bull Fund, Gold 2x Bear Fund,India2x Bull Fund. India 2x Bear Fund.US Technology 2
Bull Fund and US Technology 2x Bear Fund.

The Manager is charging a managemenifee of 0.51% and 0.43% for ALD Targel Maturity Bond Fund 201609 and AUD
Targel Maturity Bond Fund 201812 respectively, for the invesiment of (i) the Iniilal issue price and (il) the number of
oulstanding units in issue as of relevani Valualion Day. The Manager will pay, oul ofthis fee. the fees and expenses of
the Trusiee. Custodian, Administralor, Transfer Agent and Auditorfor AUD Target Malurity Bond Fund 201609 and the
ALID Target Maturity Bond Fund 201812,

Please see below forthe amounts incwred during the year and amounts payable at the year ended 20 June 2021 and

30 June 20:20:
China 2x Bull Fund China 2x Bear Fund
Yearended 30 Year ended30 Yearended3D Yearended3D
June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020
JPY000 JPY 000 JRY 000 JRY 000
Managemant hea nebale (3.3260) [2.653) (3522 (2413}
Managemeant fea rebataratenable (3, 183) (G33) (3147 {26T)
Gold 2x Bull Fund Gold 2x Bear Fund
Yearended 30 Yearended30 Yearended30 Yearended30
June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020
JPY 000 JPY 000 LJPY 000 JPY 000
Managemant fea rebate (3 HE) [2.853) [3 448 {3,137)
Managemant lée rebate (recenvable )/ payabla (2 775N 779 (2256 (254
India2x Bull Fund India 2x Bear Fund
Yearended 30 Year ended30 Yearended3D Yearended30
June 2021 June 2020 June 2024 June 2020
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY D00 SPY 000
Managemant fea rebate 33244 [2.065] [3.524 (3,144}
Managemant fes rebateracenable 13257} 1231] [1,382 [G18)
ALUD Target Maturity Bond ALD Target Maturity Bond
Fund 201609 Fund 201612
Wearended 30 Yearended30 Yearended30 Yearemded30
June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020
AUD ALD AUD AUD
Managemant lee moumead S41 630 586175 126 254 141 685
Managemeant fea payable 202,214 146,778 45,214 32160
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

10.

Management fee [eontinued)

US Technology 2x Bull Fund  US Technology 2x Bear Fund
Yearended 30 Yearended30 Yearended30 Yearended30
June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000
Management fes rebate {2483) (685] (4,734 {790}
Managemant fes rebatereceiable (1,322) (EES) (2320 (799}

Trustee fee

The sub-funds pays lrustee fees at rates agreed fromlime to time. The Trustee I3 also be enlitled 1o recover out-of-pocke
expenses in performing s services.

The trustee fee Iz afed annual fee of USS2.500 persub-fund.

The Manager will pay 1he trustee fae for the sub-funds, AUD Targe! Maturity Bond Fund 201609 and AUD Target Maturity
Bond Fund 201612

Please see below forthe amounts incwred during the year and amounts payable af the year ended 30 June 2021 and
30 June 20:20:

China 2x Bull Fund China 2x Bear Fund
Yearended 30 Yearended30 Yearended3® Yearended30
June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

JPY000 JEY000 JPY 000 JRY 000
Trustee fee ncurmed 303 210 305 310
Trustee fes prapaymeant (214 [623] (722 {1,036
Gald 2x Bull Fund Gold 2x Bear Fund

Yearended 30 Yearended30 Yearended30 Yearended30
June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020

JPY 000 JPY000 JPYD00 JPY D00
Trustes fee ncumed 305 310 305 310
Trustes fee prepayment {319} (624 ) (319 624}
IndiaZx Bull Fund India Zx Bear Fund

Yearended 30 Yearended30 Yearended30 Yearended30
June 2021 June 2020 June 2024 June 2020
JPY 00 JEY OO0 JPY D00 JPY 000

Trushos fae incurmsd 305 20 305 310

Trustes fes prapayment {3600 (GE5] (369 {E74)

US Technology 2x Bull Fund  US Technology 2x Bear Fund
Yearended 30 Yearended30 Yearended3D Yearended30
June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020
JPYT00 JEY 000 JRY D00 JRY 000

Trustes fes incumsd 839 839 127

e
=
-~

Trustae fae prapayment {241} 127 (535, 127
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
11. Administrators fee

The administrators, ENP Paribas Securities Services. operaling though itz Singapore Branch and BMNP Parlbas Fund
Services Dublin Limited , are paid a service fee as may be agreed betweean the direclors and the Administrator from tinme
to lime. In addition, the Adminisiralors are enlitled to receive oul of the assels of the sub-fund other service feas,
fransaction fees and oul-of-pockel expenses as set out in the administralion agreemen!. The Manager will pay the
Administralors fee for AUD Targel Malurity Bond Fund 201603 and the AUD Targel Malurily Bond Fund 201812,

Please see belowforihe amounts Incwred during the year and amounts payable at the year ended 20 June 2021 and

30 June 2020:
China 2x Bull Fund China 2x Bear Fund
Yearended30 Yearended30 Yearended3D Yearended 30
June 2021 June 2020 Jure 2021 June 2020
SJPY 000 JPYTI00 JPY000 JPY000
Adrrinestration b indumed 2129 2,251 2.129 2,249
Adrninistration e payabhks 1,255 1,083 1.255 1.083
Gold 2x Bull Fund Gold 2x Bear Fund
Yearended30 Yearended30 Yearended3D Yearended 30
June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020
JPY 000 JPY000 JEY000 JPY000
Administration fee iIncumed 2130 2232 2130 2239
Adminestration fes payabhs 1,255 1,082 1.255 1.082
India 2x Bull Fund India 2x Bear Fund
Yearended 30 Yearended 30 YearendeddD Yearended 30
June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020
SJPYO00 SPY00 JPY000 JPY000
Adminstration fes incumed 2,129 2,190 2,129 2,255
Administration fee payable 1,255 1,083 1.255 1,083
S Technology 2x Bull Fund  US Technelogy 2x Bear Fund
Yearended30 Yearended 30 Yearended3D Year ended 30
June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020
JPY 000 JPY000 JPY'000 JPY000
Administration fe incamed 2488 470 2488 470
Administration fee payabls 511 470 611 4710
12 Custodian fee

The custodian, BNP Paribas Securities Senvices, operating through its Singap ore Branch, is paid a service fee as may
be agreed between the directors and the custodian from time fo time. In addition.the custodian s entitled to receive ou
ofthe azsels of the sub-funds slher servicefees, Iransaclion fess and out-of-pocket expenses as setout in the custo dian
agreement.

The Manager will pay the custodian fee for the sub-funds, AUD Targel Malurity Band Fund 201603 and AUD Target
Maturity Bond Fund 201612,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

12

13.

Custodian fee [continued)

Please see below forthe amounts Incurred during the vear and amounts payable at the year ended 30 June 2021 and

30 June 2020:

Custodyfes moumed

Custody fea payabla

Custodyfes moumed

Custody fes payable

Cushod y féd wmcumad

Custodyfes payabls

Custodyfes moumed
Custody fes payabla

Transfer Agency and Registrar

China 2% Bull Fund China 2x Bear Fund

Yearended 30 Yearended3D Yearended3D Yearended30
Jurne 2021 Jume 2020 June 2021 June 2020

JPY 000 JEY000 JPY 000 JPY 000
248 {135) 232 (545}
18 306 174 311
Gold 2x Bull Fund Gold Zx Bear Fund

Yearended 30 Yearended30 Yearended3d Yearended30
Jume 2021 Jume 2020 June 2021 June 2020

JEY 000 JPY 000 JRY 000 JRY 000
363 (146] 217 {1303
304 0 280 272
India2x Bull Fund India 2% Bear Fund

Yearended 30 Yearended30 Yearended30 Yearended30
June 2021 June 2020 June 2021 June 2020
JPYT00 JPY000 SPYD00 JPY D00

153 [81) 216

176)

411 404 259 281

US Technology 2x Bull Fund  US Technology 2x Bear Fund
Yearended 30 Yearended30 Forthe period Yearended 30
June 2021 Jume 2020 30 June 2021 June 2020

JPY 000 SPY 00 JPY D00 JPY D00
1535 23 1,798 71
6614 (£2) 2305 (71}

Thetransfer agency and regisirar. BNP Paribas Trust Services Singapore Limited iz paida service fae as may be agreead
between the directors and the transfer agency and registrar from time to time. In addition, the transfer agency and
registrar is enlitled to recelve oul of the assels of the sub-funds other service fees, iransaction fees and out-of-pocke
expenses as set oul inthe transfer agency and regisirar services agreement.

=7
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
14. Taxation

Therels, &t present, no directiaxation in the Cayman Islands and Interest, dividends and gains p ayable to the sub-funds
in respect of the Trusl will be received free of all Cayman Islands laxes. Each sub-fund is registered as an "exempied
trust® pursuant to the Trusts Law (as amended). The Truslee has applied for, and expects to receive, an undertaking
from the Govemnorin Cabinet of the Cayman Islands fo the effect that, fora period of 50 years from the creation of each
sub-fund, no law thal thereafler is enacled in the Cayman Islands imposing any tax or duty to be levied on income of on
capital assels. gains or appreciation or any tax in the nature of estate duty orinheritance lax will apply lo any prop ety
comprised in orany Income arising under each sub-fund, or lo the Unlihelders thereof, In respect of any such propery
orincome,

The Cayman Islands are not parly to any double taxation freafies. Under current Cayman Islands law no fax will be
charged inthe Cayman Islands on profils or gains of a sub-fund and divid ends of a sub-fund willbe payable to unith olders
reside in or outsidethe Cayman Islands with oul deduction of tax. No stamp duly is levied inthe Cayman Islands on he
fransfer of redemplien ofunils in a sub-fund. The sub-fund s investin securities issued by entities which are d emiciled in
countries other than the Cayman Islands. Many ofthese foreign countries have lax laws which indicate that capital gans
taxes are required to be delermined on a self-assessment basis and, therefore, such laxes may nol be deducted bythe
sub-fund's broker on a "withholdin g° basis.

15. Transactions with related parties/associates

In accordancewilh |1AS 24 Relaled Party Disclosures’. the following are the related paries during the financial year: J P,
Morgan Mansar Managemenl Limiled acls as Allernalive Invesiment Fund Manager and Invesimenl Manager for the
Unit Trust. Intertrust Corporale Services (Cayman) Limiled acls as Trustee for the Unit Trust. For further dedalls of the
related parly transaclions, please referlo Noles 3.

JPMorgan Chase & Co. and ils aflisles are counlerparies for cerain derivalives, struclured producis and cerlain
government bonds ransaclions. J.P. Morgan Mansar Management Limiled is considered as a connected party of
JPMorgan Chase & Co. Allrelaled party transaclionswere enlered into in the erdinary course of business and onnomal

commercial terms.
16. Post Balance Sheet events

Up 1o the date of approval of these financial stalements, there were no signficant events aflerthe year end date that
would have an Impact on the financial statemenis

17. Approval of financial statements

The financial stalemenis were approved and authorsedforisswe by the Trustee and the Manager on 22 December
2021,
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2021 10
100,822,679.79 8,631,429,617
2,743,333.14 234,856,750
98,079,346.65 8,396,572,867
928,080
105.68 9,047
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BNP
049319 #01 01 20

50

39

29.2
33.6

14

50
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2021 10
2,500 28 4,200
25,000,001 25,000,000
2007 11
AIFM AIFMD FCA
FCA J.P.
AIFM
AIFMD

227/306



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 10
2021 10
23 2,429
2 383
18 2,225
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2021 10 29
113.68
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2020 12 31
2020 2019

13 41,827 4,755
14 15,308,007 1,740,214 13,661,742 1,553,067
15 6,588,374 748,966 6,637,394 754,539
21,896,381 2,489,181 20,299,136 2,307,606
21,938,208 2,493,935 20,299,136 2,307,606
16 (6,376,524) (724,883)  (6,041,154) (686,758)
15,519,857 1,764,297 14,257,982 1,620,847
15,561,684 1,769,052 14,257,982 1,620,847
17 25,000,002 2,842,000 25,000,002 2,842,000
34,864 3,963 34,864 3,963
(9,473,182)  (1,076,911) (10,776,884)  (1,225,116)
15,561,684 1,769,052 14,257,982 1,620,847

2021

2021

20

20
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J.P.
2020 12 31
2020 2019
6 18,366,426 2,087,895 9,460,856 1,075,510
6  (12,523,244)  (1,423,642)  (5,281,301) (600, 378)
(4,494, 555) (510,941)  (3,807,165) (432,799)
7 63,558 7,225 2,193 249
1,412,185 160,537 374,583 42,583
8 9,754 1,109 103,410 11,756
9 (11,097) (1,262) (8,500) (966)
10 1,410,842 160,385 469,493 53,372
11 (107,140) (12,180) (86,611) (9,846)
1,303,702 148,205 382,882 43,526
2019
J.P.
2020 12 31

2019
25,000,002 2,842,000 34,864 3,963 (11,159,766) (1,268,642) 13,875,100 1,577,321
382,882 43,526 382,882 43,526
2019 12 31
25,000,002 2,842,000 34,864 3,963 (10,776,884) (1,225,116) 14,257,982 1,620,847
1,303,702 148,205 1,303,702 148,205
2020 12 31

25,000,002 2,842,000 34,864 3,963 (9,473,182) (1,076,911) 15,561,684 1,769,052
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J.P.
Jp Jp
E14
5JP 25
FCA
FCA
101 FRS 101
FRS 101 2006 IFRS
2006
FRS 101 2006 IFRS
IFRS 45(b)
46 52
1AS 38 1AS
1AS 79(a)
IFRS 1AS 16
1AS
1AS 30 31
IAS 24 17 IAS 24

IAS 24
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4.5

4.6

4.7
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4.9

4.9.1

FVOCI
FVTPL

FVTPL

SPPI SPPI

FVTPL
SPPI

FVTPL

JP
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4.9.2
FVTPL
FVOCI
4.9.3
ECL
ECL FVOCI ECL
( )
ECL
R&S
12
ECL
ECL
4.10
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4.11

IFRS

EMEA
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2020 2019
3,047,116 3,227,052
14,419,310 6,233,804
18,366,426 9,460,856
(12,523,244) (5,281,301)
5,843,182 4,179,555
JP
3,227,052

2020 2019
63,558 2,193

2020 2019
9,754 103,410

JP
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2020 2019
11,097 8,500
JP
2020 2019
68,360 98,509
22,969 23,263
1,944,965 1,538,626
299,803 267,990
153,779 149,485
147,811 299,742
2019
2020 2019
235,578 86,611
(86,611)
148,967 86,611
(41,827)
(41,827)

107,140 86,611
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2006

2020
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19 2019 19
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2020 2019
1,410,842 469,493
268,060 89,204
(86,611)

1,458 623
(33,940) (3,216)
(41,827)

107,140 86,611
2020 2019
17,383 28,080
125 381
2 3
2 3
LTIP

200,000 2006
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14

15

16

31

1,017,347

JP

JP

JP
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2020 2019
41,827
41,827
2020 2019
11,186
6,577,188 6,637,394
6,588,374 6,637,394
1,649,063 (2019 :3,227,052
2020 2019
4,518,483 4,836,731
1,540,744 1,092,063
68,013 22,840
249,284 89,520
6,376,524 6,041,154
818,764 2019
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17
2020 2019
2019 2 2
25,000,000
2019 25,000,000 25,000,000 25,000,000
25,000,002 25,000,002
18
2020 106,388 2019 101,409
19
JP 2015 19
2018 15 LTIP
LTIP 2020 12 31 67 2019
75 2022 LTIP
LTIP
LTI
RSU RSU
50 50

RSU
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RSU
RSU
RSU SAR
2019 2020
2020 12 31 106.52 2019 113.7

147,811 2019 299,742
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Balance sheet

31 Decembaer 2020 2018
Noto H 5
Non-current assets
Defarrad tax aasat 13 41827 -
Curreni assels
Cash and cash sgquivalenis 14 15,308,007 13,861 742
DCabiors 15 8538374 6,837 384
Total current assots 21,886,381 20,258 136
Total assels 21,938,204 20,298 136
Current iabilties
Credilons: amouwnts falling due within one year 16 (8.375,524) {6,047,154)
Net current assals 15,518 85T 14,257 982
Not assots 15,561,684 14,257 882
Ecuity
Called-up shane capital 17 25,000,002 25, 000 002
Dl résanas 34 854 34 854
Accumulated Isses 5. 473,183) {10,776 884)
Total equity 15,561,684 14,257 842

The notes on pages 21 - 28 form ar integral part of these firancal stalements.

The financial statements on pages 18 - 28 were approved by the Board of Directors on 20 April 2021 and signed on its

behalf by:

M

Matthew Melling
Director

Date: 20 April 2021

=10 -
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Income statement

Year ended 31 December 2020 2015
Mote ] 5
(pamting incoma G 18,388 426 8 480 855
(Opamting expansa & {12,523, 244) 15,281.301)
Adminislralive exponses 14,454.555) (3,807.185)
Olber Incoma T 53,558 2193
Oiparating profit 1,442,185 374 583
Interesl anc simdar Income & 9,754 103410
Irtenesl axpense and similar charmg es g (11,097} (6,500
Profit before income tax 10 1,410,842 465453
InEDMmE 1AX Sxpense 1 (107,140 (B6.611)
Profit for the tinancial year 1,303,702 JB2.882

Statement of comprehensive income

There wers no other ilens of comprehansive ircome or expense other than the profit for the financial year shown above (2019:
$nil), As a result, profit for the financial year represents {olal comprehensiva income in both the cument and prior financial vear,

The notes on pages 21 - 28 form an integral part of thesa financial statements.

=158 -
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity

Calhed-Lip Other Accumulated

share capital roserves lossas Total equity

5 5 2 5

Balance as at 1 January 2013 25,000,002 34864 (11,155,766 13,875,100
Frofil_for the linancisl yoar 52 882 342,582
Balance as at 31 Decomber 2019 25,000,002 34,864 (10,776 3E4) 14,257 982
Frofil for the finandial year — — 1,303,702 1,303,702
Balance as at 31 Decombar 2020 25,000,002 34,364 10,473,182} 15,561,684

Other reserves relate (o share basad payment awards granted o employees by the Companry.

The notes on pages 21 - 28 form an integral part of these financial stalaments.

-0 -
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements

1.  General information

The Company is a privaie limited company incorporated and domiciled in United Kingdom. The Company's immediate parent
undertaking is The Bear Steams Companies LLE, incomporated in the state of Delaware in the Urited States of America (LS5
The Company's ullimate parert undertaking. and the parent undertaking of the only group in which the resulis of the Company are
consolidated, is JPMorgan Chase & Co. (the "Firm® or "JPMorgan Chasa™). which is incorporated in the state of Delaware in the
LS. The consolidated financial statements of the Firm can be obtained from the Company's registered office at 25 Bank Sirest,
Camnary Wharf, London, E14 5JF. England.

Principal activities

The Company s an assel managemen, company which provides risk management and siralegic assel management services (o
clients. The Compary promotes, launches and manages funds, investiments and other investmen! solutions in line with s
regulatory pemissions as set by the Financial Conduct Authonty (FCAT). The Company is authorsed and regulated by the
Fimancial Conduct Authority ("FCA™).

2. Basis of preparation

These financial stalements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 104, "Reduced Disclosure
Framework™ ("FRS 1017). FRS 101 applies the recognition and measuremant requirements of International Financial Reporing
Standards "IFRS") in conformity with {he requirements of the Companies Act 2008,

The financial statemenis have beean prepared on a going concem basis under the historical cost corvention ard in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006,

The following exemplions from the requirenwnts of IFRS in conformity with the requirenwnts of the Comparies Act 2006 have
been appled in the preparation of these finanaal statements, in accordance with FRS 101;

»  Cerain share based paymen! disclosures in respect of Group equily instruments (IFRS 2, "Share-based paymeant’
paragraphs 45{b} and 46 10 52}

+  Comparative information disclosures (paragraph 38 of 1AS 1, 'Presentation of financial statements' (*1AS 17) for
reconaliation of share capital {paragraph Paiiv) of 143 1)

+  Statement of compliance 1o IFRS (paragraph 16, 145 1);
+  Cash flow statement and related notes (IAS 7 Cash flow statements);

+  Disdosures in relation to new or revised siandards issued but not yel effective (paragraph 30 and 31, 145 8 "Accouniing
polides. changes in accounting estimates and emors’y;

+  Key management compeansation disclosures (paragraph 17, 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosuras' ("LAS 24")):

+  Related party transactions with whaolly cwned group undertakings (IAS 24).

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements gererally requires management to make judgements, estimales and assumplions fhat
affect the amounts recognised in the financial statements. Due to the nature of Company's business and balances, no significant
accouning estimates or judgements were reguired in preparation of thesa finandal statements.

4.  Significant accounting policies

The following are the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these finandal statements. These policies have
bean applied consistently in aach of the years presented, urless otherwise stated.

41 Functional and presentation currency

tems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the curency of the primary economic emvironment
in which the enfity operates (the “unciional currency’). United States ("U.S") dollars is considered as the funclional and
presentation cumency of the Compary.

4.2 Forelgn currency translation

Monetary assets and monetary liabiliies in foreign curencies are translated into U5, dollars at rates of excharge nuling on the
balance shaet date. Incoma and expanse ileams denominated in foreign currencies are translated into .5, dollars at exchange
rates pravailing at the date of the transactions. Any gains o losses ansing on translation are taken direclly to the income
statement,

Nor-monesary items denominated in foreign currendies that are siated at hisiorical cost are translkated info LS. dollars al the
exchange rate niling at the date when the trarsaction was initially recognised,

-21-
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4. Significant aceounting policies (continuad)

43 Income and expense recognition

Azsel managemen! fees

This revenue category indudes fees from invesiment management and related services,

Invesimant managemani feas ara typically based on the value of assels under management and are collecied and recagnised at
the end of sach peiod over which the managemen! services are provided and the value of the managed assets is known. The
Company has confraciual amangements with third parties for providing distribution and other senvices in connection with its asses
fEnagemeant activitias.

income from Access agreement:

The Company has corfractual amangements with another JP Morgan Chase undertaking for providing seevices in the form of
principal manager and or invesimen! manager for certain invesimant siruclure and (o assis! with the iritial preparations of such
products. Income from this agreement is diven by the reimbursement of cerfain fixed costs as defined in the agreement
and expansas incumad in establishing the Funds subject o the limits prescribed thenein

EXpenses

Amounts paid 1o third-party service providers are recorded in operating espanses under fund related expenses. Operating
expenses indude, but are not limited to custody costs, seftlement and exchange fees, regulatory fees, administrative, audit or
lagal feas. All expenses are recognized whan the undedying contract bacomes legally binding or at the agread due date if later.

44 Provisions

Provisions are recognised whan the Company has a presant legal or constructive obligation as a rasult of past events, it is
probable that an autflow of economic benafits will be reguired to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of he amount of the
obligation can be made,

45 Pensions and other post-retirement benefits
The Company pariicipates in a defined confribution pension scheme in the United Kingdom.

A defined contibuion plan is a persion plan uncer which the Company pays a defined leval of contnbuiions. Obligations for
contbutions 1o defined confribution pension plans are recognised as an expense and charged (o the income statement on an
accrual basis,

46 Share-based payment awards

Share-based payment awards may be mace o employeas of the Comparny under the Fimn's incantive awards schemes. The fair
value of amy such sharas, rights to shares orf share oplions is measurad when the condifional award is made. This value is
recognised as the compersation expense to the Company over the period 1o which the performance criteria relate {ogether with
amployer's sodal securnty expenses or ofher payroll taxes, All of the awards granted are equity seitled. The Company estimates
the level of forfeitures and applies this forfeiture rate at the grant date,

4.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash ecquivalents incude cash and balances at banks and loans and advances 1o banks with maturities of three months
oF less,

4.8 Current and deferred income tax

Income tax payable on taxable profits (ourment tax) is recognised as an expense in the penod in which the profits arisa, Income tax
recoverable on tax allowable losses is recognised as a current tax asset only to the extent that it is regarded as recoverable by
offset agairs! taxable profits ansing in the current or pror penod. Current tax is measured using 1ax rates and tax laws that have
bean enacted or substantively enacted at the balance cheet date.

Deferrad tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temparary differences arising from the differences between the {ax
bases of assels and liabilities and their carmying amounts in the financial statements. Deferad 1ax s determined using (ax rates
and legislation enacted or subslantively enacted by the balance shes! date, which are expected to apply when the defemed {ax
assel is realised or the defemed tax liability iz settlled. Defered tax assets and liabilities are only offsal when there is both a legal
right amd an intertion to settle on & ret basis. Curment tax and defemed fax are recogrised direcily in equity if the tax relates io
iems that are recognised in the same or a different penod in equity.

i
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4. Significant aceounting policies (continuad)
4.9 Financial instruments

4.9.1 Financial assets and financial liabilites
i Recognition of inancial assets and financial liabilities

The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contraciual provisions of the
irstrument, Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recogrised on the frade-date, which is the date on which the
Company commits 1o purchase or sell an asset.

il Classification and measuremen! of firancial assels and financial habilities

On intial recognition, financial assets are classified and measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income ("FVYOCI") or fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"). The dassification is based on both the business model for
managing the financial assets and their confraciual cash flow charactenstics. Faciors considerad by the Company in determining
the business model for a group of assels include pas! expenience on how the cash flows for these assets were collected, how the
assets’ perffomance is evaluated and reporiad 1o key management parsonnel, how rsks are assessed and managed, and bow
MENagers are compensated.

On initial recogrition, financial liabilities are classified as measured at either amartised cost or FVTPL.
a} Finandal assets and financial liabilities measured ai amoriised cost

Fimancial assels are measured at amortised cost if they are held under a business model with the objective to collect cortraciual
cazh flows ("Hold to Collec™} and they have contractual terms under which cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest ("SPPI)L  In making the SPPI assessment, the Company consicers whether the contraciual cash fows are consistent
with a basic lending arangameant (i.e. interas! includes only consideration for the time value of money. credit risk, other basic
lending risks and a profit margin that is consisten! with a basic lending arrangement). Where the confractual terms infroduce
axposure to sk or volalility that ane inconsisient with a basic lending amangement, the related financial asset iz classified and
measured at FVTPL. Financial assets with embedded dernvatives are considerad in their entirety when determining whather their
cash flows are PP As a result of the application of these criteria, only debt financial assets are eligible to be measured at
amorlised cost,

Financial assals measured al amortised cost include cash and cash eguivalents and deblors that are in the Hold to Caollest
business model.

Fimancial iabilities are measured at amortised cost unless they are held for frading or designated as measured at FVTRPL. Most of
the Compamy’s financial hiabiliies are measured at amoartised cost. Financial liabilities measured at amonised cost incude trade
craditars, accruals and amounts cwed to ather JP Morgan Chase undertakings.

Financial assels and financal habiliies measured at amortised cost are initially recognised at fair value induding transaction costs
(which are explained below). The initial amourt recognised is subseguently reduced for pancipal repayments and for accrued
irterest using the effective interest method (see below). In addition, the camying amount of firandal assels is adjusted by
recognising an expested credit loss allowance through the profit or loss,

The efective interest method is used to allocate interest income or interest expense over the relevant perod. The afective
interest rate is the rate that discounts esfimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial assal
or financial liability or a shorter period when appropriate, 1o the net camying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. The
effactive intarast rate is astablishad on iritial recognition of the financial asset or financial liability. The calculation of the afactive
interest rate includes all fees and commissions paid or recaived, ransaction costs, and discounts or premiums that are an integral
part of the effective inierest rate. Transaction costs are incremenial costs that are directly atinbutable to the acguisition, issuance
or disposal of a financial assal or financial liability.

Gaing and losses arising on the disposal of financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised in trading profit or other
non-interest revenue as relevant.

4.9.2 Interest income and interast expense

Unless a finandal assat is eedit-impaired, interas! income is recognised by applying the efective interes! method 1o the carmying
amount of a finarcial asse! before acjusting for any allowance for expected credit losses. I a financial asse! is oedit-impaired,
interest income i recognised by apphving the effective interest rate 1o the carrying amount of the finandal asset including any
allovance for axpectad cradil lossas,

-23.
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
MNotes to the financial statements (continued)

4. Significant aceounting policies (continuad)
4.9 Financial instruments {continued)

4.9.2 Interest income and interest expense ([continued)

Interest sxpense on finandal liabilities is recognised by applying the effeclive interest method {o the amortised cost of financial
liabiliies. Interest income and expenss on finandal assals and finandal liabilities, excluding those classified at FYTPL, are
presentad in interest income from financial assets measured at amordized cost and FVOC| and interest sxpense from finandal
liabilifies measured at amortised cost respectively. Interest generated as a result of 'negative’ interest rates is recognised gross,
as inferest income or interes! axpense.

4.9.3 Impairment of financial assets

The Compary recogrises ECL for financial assets that are measured at amortised cosl.

The ECL is determined on in-scope financial instruments measured at amorized cost or FYOCH, ECL are measured collectively
via a portiolin-based (modeled) approach for Stage 1 and 2 assats but are gererally measured individually for Stage 3 assets.
ECL are forecasted over the 12-month term (Stage 1) or expecied life (Stage 2 or 3) of in-scope inancal instruments, whers the
forecast honizon includes the reasonable and supportable (RES) forecast period, the reversion period and the residual period and
considers the time value of maney. In determining the ECL measurement and staging for a finandal instrument, the Company
applies the definiion of defaul! consistent with the Basel definition of defaull o maintain uniformity of the definition across the
Fimm,

Determining the appropdateness of the allowance is complex and reguires judgnent by management about the efect of
circumstances that are inherently unoerain. Further, estimating the allowance involves consiceration of a range of possible
outcomeas, which management evaluates (o detemmine its best estimate.

The Company must consider the appropriateness of decisions and judgmeants regarding methodology and inputs utilized in
dgeveloping estimates of ECL each reporting peniod and document them appropriately,

410 Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

Fimancial assais are derecognised when the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asse!l has expired, or has been
transfarmad with aithar of the following conditions met:

a) the Company has transfermed substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assat: or

b} the Company has neither retained nor transferred substantially all of the rsks and rewards; but has relinquished control of the
assel,

Fimancial kabilities are derecognised whan they are extinguished, that is when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or axpires.
441 Share Capital

The shara capital of the Campany consists of ondginary shares, dassified as aquity.

5  Segmental analysis

The Compary = not in scope of IFRS 8 "Operating segments’, as its dabt or equity instruments are not traded on a public market,

therefore segmental analysis of the Company’s revenue and assals is nol necessary. The Company operates in the EMEA
geographic region.
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED

MNotes to the financial statements (continued)

6. Operating income and expansa

Accass Agreement lees
Assel managamant fees
Investmant maragamont Tees

Operaling axpenses

2020 2018
5 5

3,847 116 3,227 052
14,413310 6,233 604
18,366,426 9,460,856
{12,523 244) (5,281 .301)
5,643 182 4,178 555

Invesimant maragemen! fees represents feas for sk managemsant and sirategic assa! management services, via its fund
solutions business. Current year income indudes feas of 33,947, 116 (2019: $3.227 052) from other JPMorgan Chase
undertakings partaining to the Access Agreament. Operating expenses include fund costs paid by the Compary on babalfl of
the funds. This arangement may include payment of all the expensas or those expanses exceading specilic limit which has
been agreed upon. The Company has disclosed operaling income instead of tumover as this reflects more accurately the

resulis and natura of the Company's activities.

7.  Other income

2020 2019
5 &
Forgign exchange translation gain 53,558 2,193
8. Interest and similar income
2020 218
% -3
Inerast ang simdar Income:
Financial instruments al amortised cost 9.754 103410
Al interast and similar income is receivable from other JPMargan Chase undertiakings.
8. Interest expense and similar charges
2020 218
5 §
Irlerast axpensa ard similar chagos
Financial instruments al amorised cost 11,087 8500
All interest expense and similar charges is payable to other JPMorgan Chase underiakings.
18. Profit before income tax
2020 2018
5 5
Profil bafora income lax ks staled after charging:
Auditors’ remuneration for the audil of the Company's anreal irancial stalemants 58,3580 88,508
Audit-related assurancs senvices 22868 23,263
Wages and salaries 1.5344.065 1.538.626
Snodal sacurity cosls 298 803 267,990
Cihar pansion and banelil cosls 153,778 148,485
Share based paymants 147811 288,742

The average monihly number of persons providing services to the Company duning the yearwas 6 {2019: 6).

SRR
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
MNotes to the financial statements (continued)

11.  Income tax axpense

2020 2019
E %

{a) Analysis of tax charge for the year
Current taxation
Currenl Lax on profils for tha year 235,578 BE.611
Adjustment in espect of plor years (86,611) —
Total current tax 148,967 BE, 611
Deferred 1ax
Curmanl yoar charge {41,827) —
Total deferred tax (41,827) —
Total tax expense for the year 107,140 BE,E11

{b) Factors affecting the current tax charge for the year

The tax charge for the year is same as the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK 19% (2019 199%), The differences ane
explained below:

2020 M
5 5
Profil before incoma 1410,842 450 483
Profil befors fncome tax mulliplied by standard rale of UK corporation tax 184 (2019: 1895 268,060 B0 204
Effects of
Adjustment in espoct of pior years (B5,611) -
Non deductible expenses 1,458 623
Incoma nol laxabla (33, 540) (3.218)
Emgdayes slack plan i41.827) —
Taotal tax charge for the year 107,140 BE611
12. Directors’ emoluments and staff costs
2020 218
-3 5
Apgragae emoluments 17,383 251080
Tolal contribadions 1o a defined conlribulion plan 125 381
MNumbas of dirscions with shares ecehod of neoeivable under LTIPs 2 3
Number of direciors 1o wham defined contribullon pension rghls acenred 2 3

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006, the directors’ emoluments above represen: the proporion paid or payable in
respect of gualifying services to the Compary incduding LTIPs. Directors also received smoluments for non-gualifying
sarvices, which are not required to be disclosed.

Highest paid director

For 2020, the emoluments o the highest paid direcior is under £200,000 which is not required to be disdosed under the
requirements of the Companies Act 2008,

-05 -
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
MNotes to the financial statements (continued)

13. Deferrad tax assat

2020 2019
-3 5
The balance comprises temporary differences atiributable to:
Share based payments:
Cpering balance as of 1 January — —
Defernad tax charged 1o income statemant for the period 41827 —
Closing balance as of 31 December 41,827 —_
14. Cash and cash aguivalents
Al bank balances are held with JPMorgan Chase undertakings.
15. Debtors
2020 013
§ 5
Prepayment and accnied income 11,186 —
Trade detlors 6,577,188 6637354
5,588.374 5,637,104

Trade deblors includes balance owed by a JPMorgan Chase undertaking of $1.,649 063 (2019; 3 227 052),

16. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2020 218

5 &

Trade credilors 4515453 4,536,731
Accnials 1,540,744 1092063
Bank overdraft 85,013 22540
Tax Ezbiitias 249,284 59,520
6,376,524 6,041,154

Creditors: amouwnis faling due within one year indudes balances owed to JFMorgan Chase undertakings of 3818.764 (2019:
S1.017.347).

17. Called-up share capital

2020 2018
5 $

lzaued and fully pald share capital
1 (2078 1) Drdinary share of £1 2 2
25,000,000 (2019: 25.000,000) Ordinary sharms of $1 each 29,000,000 25,000, 000
25,000,002 25,000, 602

18. Pension costs
The Compary participates in a defined contribulion pension scheme in the Urited Kingdom,

The Compary recorded a latal pension expense of 5106 388 for the year 2020 (2019 $101.408).

e § B
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

18. Share based payments

Employee stock-based awards

The ulimate parent of the Company, JPMorgan Chase & Co. has granted long-term share-based awards 1o carain key
employees undar iis LTIP (Long Term Incentive Flan), as amended and reslaled affective May 19,2015 and further amended and
resiated effective May 15, 2018. Under the terms of tha LTIP, as of 31 December 2020, 67 million shares of common stock wera
available for issuance through May 2022 (2019 75 million shares). The LTIP is the only aclive plan under which the Sirm is
curmenily granting share-based incertive awards. In the following discussion, the LTIP, plus prior Finm plans and plans assuned
as the result of acquisitions, ara refemad to collectively as the "LTI Plans® and such plans constitute the Firme' share-baszed
incentive plans.

The Firm separately recognises compensation expense for each ranche of each award as if it were a separate award with its own
wvasting date. For each franche granted, compenszation expensa is recognised in ine with how awards vest from the grant date
urtil the vesting date of the respective tranche, provided that the employees will not become full-career eligible during the vesting
period. For awards with full-career eligibility provisions and awards granied with no fulure substantive service reguirement, the
Firm acorues the estimated value of awards espected to be awarded to employees as of the grant date without giving
consideration to the impact of post-employment restictions. For each franche granted {o employess who will become full-carser
efigible during the vesting period, compansation expense is recognised in line with how awards ves! from the grant date until the
earlier of the employes’s full-career aligibility date or the vesting date of the respactive tranche.

Restricted stock units

Restricted stock units ("RSUS") are awarded at no cost 1o the recipient upan their grant. RSUS are gererally granted annually and
generally vest at a rate of 50% after two years, S0% afler three years, and convert into shares of common stock at the vesting
date. In addition, RESUs typically include full-caresr aligibility provizions, which allow amployeas 1o continue to vest upon voluntary
termination, subject to post-employment and other restriclions based on age or senice-related requirements. All of these awards
ara subject to forfeitura umtil vested and contain clawback provisions that may result in cancellation prior to vesting under cariain
spedfied droumstances. REUs entitle the recipient 1o receive cash payments equivalent o any dividends paid on the underlying
common stock during the period the REUs are outstanding.

Compensation expense for REUs is measured based upon the number of shares granted multiplied by the siock price at the grant
date, and for employes stock options and SARSs (stock appreciation nighis), is measured at the gran! date using the Black-Scholes
valuafion madel, Compensation expense for these awards is recognised as described above,

Broad-based employee stock options

Mo broad-based employes siock options were granted in 2009 or in 2020,

The weighted-average share price during the year ended 31 December 2020 was $106.52 (2019 $113.7).
Compensation expense related to stock-based incentives

The total sxpense for the year relating to share based paymenis was $147.811 (2019; $299.742), all of which relates 1o equity
sattled share based paymenis.

-23.
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Intertrust Corporate

Services Cayman Limited

KY1-9005
3068 4,000
BNP BNP Paribas
Securities Services acting through its Singapore branch
BNP
049319 #04-01 20
BNP BNP Paribas Trust Services

Singapore Limited

049319 #01-01 20
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2021 10 17,709
DS Sumitomo Mitsui DS Asset Management Company,
Limited
2021 20
2019

DS
JpP
2021 10 73,272

JP JP
JPMorgan Chase & Co. JP

JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association
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1993
1960
2021 30 11,171
1993
2020
CIMA

CIMA

https://www._cima.ky/upimages/commonfiles/QuarterlylListofal IMutualFundsregisteredandlicensedwithth
eCaymanlslandsMonetaryAuthority-30June2021 1625765870.pdf
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CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
4.1
CIMA CIMA
REEFS
4,268.29 365.85
CIMA
4.2
4.2
CIMA
CIMA
4,268.29
365.85
CIMA
4.3
100,000
100,000

15

261/306



CIMA
4,268.29
2.1
2.2
2.3
2.4
2.5
CIMA

CIMA

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA 4,268.29
365.85
CIMA 3,048.78
365.85
365.85
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CIMA
487,804.87
CIMA 4.2 CIMA
CIMA
4.3 .3 4.3
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
5.1
5.2
5.3
5.4
5.5
CIMA
CIMA

24,390.24
36,585.37 50 30,487.80
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE TRUSTEE OF PASSIM TRUST
Opinion

We have audited the financia statements of PassiIM Trust(the “Trust”), which comprise the statements of financial
position for China 2x Bull Fund, China 2x Bear Fund, Gold 2x Bull Fund, Gold 2x Bear Fund, India 2x Bull Fund, India
2x Bear Fund, AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609, AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612, US Technology 2x
Bull Fund and US Technology 2x Bear Fund as at 30 June 2021(together the “ sub-funds’), and comprises the statements
of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for China 2x Bull Fund, China
2x Bear Fund, Gold 2x Bull Fund, Gold 2x Bear Fund, India 2x Bull Fund, India 2x Bear Fund, AUD Target Maturity
Bond Fund 201609, AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612, US Technology 2x Bull Fund and US Technology 2x
Bear Fund for the year ended 30 June 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements. These financial statements
have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in al material respects the financia position of the
sub-funds of the Trust as at 30 June 2021 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRS”).

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Trust's unitholders as a body and for
regulatory filing purposes only. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose
or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by
our prior consent in writing.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISA"). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Trust in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Other information

Other information comprises information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon, such as the trustee's report and the investment manager’s report. Management are responsible
for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies in the
financial statements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or
a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS,
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Trust’'s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Trust's financia reporting process.
Auditor’' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SA
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

I dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust's
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and

whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

Grant Thornton
George Town,
Grand Cayman

29 December 2021
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Independent auditors' report to the members of JP. Morgan Mansart Management Limited

Report on the audit of the financia statements

Opinion

In our opinion, JP. Morgan Mansart Management Limited's financial statements:

give atrue and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of its profit for the
year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
(United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable
law); and

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report, which comprise: the balance sheet as at 31
December 2020; the income statement, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting
policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“1SAs (UK)") and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under 1SAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financia statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company’s ahility to continue as a going concern for

aperiod of at least twelve months from when the financia statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting

in the preparation of the financial statementsis appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the

company's ability to continue as a going concern.
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Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant

sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financia statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent

otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency
or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of
the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have

nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors' report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to report certain

opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic report and
Directors report for the year ended 31 December 2020 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared

in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we

did not identify any material misstatementsin the Strategic report and Directors' report.
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Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors responsibilities set out on page 13, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they
give atrue and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to

enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our abjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
(UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of userstaken on the basis of these financia statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design proceduresin line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud.

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the company and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with
laws and regulations related to the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA), and we considered the extent to which non-
compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that
have a direct impact on the financia statements such as the Companies Act 2006. We evaluated management’s
incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of
controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to the posting of inappropriate journal entries and the

application of management bias in accounting estimates. Audit procedures performed included:

Challenge and validation of key assumptions and judgements made by senior management in calculating critical
key accounting estimates, in particular in relation to share-based payment expenses;

Identification of journal entries for testing via the application of fraud risk criteria, including journal entries
posted by senior management;

Evaluation of entity level controls put in place by management to prevent and detect irregularities;

Enquiries with senior management, the UK Audit and Compliance Committee, internal audit and internal legal
advisors including consideration of known or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations,

and fraud;
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Assessment of whistleblowing procedures, reports and management's investigation of such matters; and
Review of key correspondence with regulatory authorities (the FCA) in relation to compliance and regulatory
proceedings.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances
of non- compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the
financial statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not
detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional

misrepresentations, or through collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:

www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions,
accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose
hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

certain disclosures of directors remuneration specified by law are not made; or

the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.
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Sheena Coutinho (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

London 20 April 2021
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